6 p.m.

AGENDA
SELECT BOARD
MONDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2023
WAQUOIT MEETING ROOM
MASHPEE TOWN HALL
16 GREAT NECK ROAD NORTH
MASHPEE, MA 02649

*Broadcast Live on Local Cable Channel 8*
Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee Website: https://www.mashpeema.qov/channel-8

— Convene Joint Meeting with the Planning Board in Open Session

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MOMENT OF SILENCE

>

Presentation of the Draft Housing Production Plan: Town Planner Evan Lehrer; Barrett Planning Group

Adjourn Joint Meeting with the Planning Board

MINUTES
Discussion and Approval of the Following Minutes: Monday, December 4, 2023 Regular Session

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

>

>

YVVY

6:40 pm Public Hearing — Modification of Weekday Entertainment License (including Saturday) of Elevated Crust,
LLC dba Wicked Restaurant 35F South Street Mashpee

Discussion and Approval of Modification of Weekday Entertainment License (including Saturday) of Elevated
Crust, LLC dba Wicked Restaurant 35F South Street Mashpee

Discussion and Possible Approval of Sending a Letter of Support for the Proposal Submitted by the Association to
Preserve Cape Cod (APCC) for NOAA’s “Coastal Habitat Restoration and Resilience Grants for Tribes and

. Underserved Communities”

Presentation and Discussion of Visitor Center at 966 Falmouth Road: Friends of the National Wildlife Refuge
Discussion and Approval of Official Names for Mashpee Ancient Burial Grounds: Mashpee Historical Commission
Certification of Hiring Process of Firefighter/ Paramedic: Blake Wilson

Public Comment

COMMUNICATIONS & CORRESPONDENCE

NEW BUSINESS

>

>

Discussion and Approval of the Following Resignations:

Human Services Committee: Member at Large (Term Expires June 30, 2024) Sam MacDonald
Sewer Commission: Member at Large (Term Expires June 30, 2026) Erin Copeland

Discussion and Approval of Reappointment: Barnstable County HOME Consortium Council,
Term February 1, 2024 — January 31, 2027: Gary Shuman

ADDITIONAL TOPICS

(This space is reserved for topics that the Chair did not reasonably anticipate would be discussed)

LIAISON REPORTS

WATER QUALITY UPDATES

"TOWN MANAGER UPDATES

EXECUTIVE SESSION

ADJOURNMENT




Planning Department
Mashpee Town Hall

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, MA 02649

Evan Lehrer

Community Development Director
(508) 539-1414
elehrer@mashpeema.gov

To: John Cotton, Chair

From: Evan Lehrer, Community Development Director

Date: December 13, 2023

Re: Process for Adoption of the Housing Production Plan Update

I met with the Affordable Housing Committee on Tuesday, December 12, 2023 relative to the adoption of
the updated Housing Production Plan. We reviewed the proposed goals and strategies to be incorporated
into the Plan and the Committee approved of the goals and strategies that are outlined in the draft Plan
before you.

Prior to submission to the Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (EOHLC) the Plan requires
a vote to adopt by both the Select Board and the Planning Board. The purpose of our meeting tonight is to
present the draft Plan to you, however we are not asking you to vote to adopt the Plan given that we have
not yet had an opportunity to post the draft Plan publicly for a comment period. As such, the Affordable
Housing Committee decided the following schedule would be appropriate with the goal of submitting the
Plan to EOHLC by the end of January 2024:

1. Present the draft Plan to the Select Board and Planning Board in a joint meeting held on
12/18/2023.

2. Edit the Plan as necessary based on comments received at that meeting between 12/19 and
12/22/2023.

3. On 12/26/2023 the amended draft will be posted publicly on the Town website for review in .pdf
format or in hardcopy in the Planning office and the comment period will remain open until
lanuary 16, 2024 for a three-week open comment period.

4. Comments received will be brought forth to the Affordable Housing Committee for consideration
at their meeting scheduled for 1/16/2024 with the goal of having them vote to adopt the Plan at
that meeting (the same draft Plan will be transmitted to the Select Board and Planning Board at
this time).

5. The draft adopted by the Affordable Housing Committee will be presented to the Planning Board
for adoption at their meeting of 1/17/2024.

6. The Select Board meets on 1/22/2024 and it's my hope that the Select Board will vote to adopt
the Plan at that scheduled meeting.

7. Subsequent to a vote of the Planning Board and Select Board we can submit the draft to EOHLC
for review before February 2024.

Cc: Karen Faulkner, Planning Board Chair
Allan Ishitz, Affordable Housing Committee Chair
Rodney Collins, Town Manager



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Draft Needs Assessment, Goals, and Strategies
For Planning Board & Select Board Review
December 18, 2023

Prepared for the Town of Mashpee
by Barrett Planning Group

i'h)““
L)l %

BARRETT

PLANNING GROUP LLC



Table of Contents

HOUSING NEEAS ASSESSIMENT ...ttt et steee et e et e et e e e stesae st s esesteteesee e e eee e eeese st e eenseseee s e eee s 1
DEMOGraPhiC Profil...c.cv ettt ettt ettt en ettt ee et e s et e sttt sae e 1
ECONOMIC PrOfilE ...ttt ettt et et e e e e e s e e ee et et s s enas 14
HOUSING CharaCteriStiCs ... .ucuiiiieieieniieeii ettt sttt sttt e en e ee et et e aeeeeeeeesseeeseesssss 22
HOUSING IMAIKET ...ttt ettt ettt et et s e e bttt e st e e et e et e een e s e e et esesee s tseeeee e e eee e 31
Barriers 10 DEVEIOPMIENT ..o ittt ettt sttt e bbb e er e e e e e e eeeeate e e e et e e et e e eee e 38

HOUSING PrOAUCTION Plan GOALS ....c.cieieeeiceieee ettt sttt et e ee et et e e et e eas e e e e e eee e 51
ANNUAl ProdUCtION GO .......iiieeiiiieicsieetne ettt ettt sttt e et et eetene s e s e e ees e e eseessses 51
QUANITATIVE GOAIS ..vviiei ettt bttt eee et e et et e ema s s e eeeteemeeesensere e 51

HOUSING ProdUCtion Plan STrategIes ...ccu o iiecietieie et sb et et s e e s eee e e et eateeee e e 54
Progress SINCE 2015 . ittt s st e bt et s s et e st b ent e e s e e eaet e et e seeearesaseesaseestsessessesesseesesseenn 54



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Housing Needs Assessment

Population Trends

Mashpee’s population grew rapidly from 1970 to 2000, increasing more than tenfold during this thirty-
year period. This growth pattern is not unique to Mashpee, as many “baby boomers” were setting down
roots during this time. However, Figure 1 shows that Mashpee grew exceptionally quickly relative to the
county as a whole. County-wide, growth slowed after 2000, with most Cape Cod communities experiencing
a population dip between 2000 and 2010. Mashpee, Bourne, and Sandwich in the Upper Cape were
exceptions to this trend and collectively gained over 2,600 residents during this period while Barnstable
County lost over 6,340.1

Figure 1. Total Population for Mashpee and Barnstable County, 1930-2020
Source: UMass Donahue institute and US Census Bureau

16,000 Ry P30 17 ) - ~15060 250,000
4 0 = [+
14,000 996
200,00
12,000 - 00:0a0
10,000 - 150,000
8,000
= 70,286 _Jd PP 100,000
6,000 ° 3,700”
4,000 -39-305 372 ot s
32,305 1238 50,000

2,000 =

867 o

_— ._=_f_'J _ <

¢ A SN e

1930 1940 1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020

Mashpee {Left Axis) —@-—Barnstable County (Right Axis)

The Metropolitan Area Planning Council (MAPC) recently released updated projections for household
populations through 2050.2 The population in households refers to the total population minus the group
quarters population. Group Quarters include nursing homes, college dormitories, homeless shelters,
correctional facilities, group homes, and all other arrangements where unrelated individuals live together
with shared facilities or services. While Figure 2 is not a seamless transition from Figure 1 because it is

1 US Census Bureau, 2020 Decennial Census, Table P1. Wellfleet in the Outer Cape also increased between 2000 and 2010 --
gaining one resident during this decade.

2 MAPC’s methodology is detailed here:
https://www.mapc.org/wpcontent/uploads/2023/10/MAPC_Projections_MethodoIogy_Documentation_LRTP2023.pdf



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

based on population in households rather than the total population, it nonetheless shows an anticipated
drop in residents for both Mashpee and Barnstable County from 2020 to 2050.

Figure 2. Projected Population in Households
Source: MAPC Population Projections, 2023

20000 ) 300,000
18,000

211,927 224,699 216,048 250,000
16,000 © . (5} 195,663~  ——

(3] 172,232 200,000
14,000 14,995 —
14,456 ®

13,986 150,000
12,000 - 13,054
10,000 i 11,465 100,000

2010 2020 2030 2040 2050

Mashpee (Left Axis) @ Barnstable County (Right Axis)

POPULATION AGE
Like many communities, Mashpee’s population is trending older, with the number of residents 55+

increasing each decade from 1990 to 2020 (Figure 3). Conversely, the under-18 population has decreased
each decade since 2000. While these trends are not specific to Mashpee, Figures 4A and 4B show that
Mashpee is more affected by these shifts than the county, state, and nation; the percentage of residents
under 18 decreased more in Mashpee compared to the other geographies, and the share of the population
55+ increased substantially more. Map 2 displays the median age of Mashpee residents by block group
and shows that the census block groups with the highest median ages include those in the New Seabury
and Popponesset areas, as well as around Johns and Ashumet Ponds.

Figure 3. Shifts in Population Age, 1990-2020
Source: Decennial Census, 1990, 2000, 2010 2020

3,000 e e ——
2,500 — -
2,000 B I

| T

|

]

= — 3 f TFFE
-nRd B R A d B 2 S

Under5 5tol7 18to24 25to34 35to44 45to54 55to64 65to74 75to84 85vyears
years years years years years years years years years  and over

m 1990 =2000 = 2010 2020



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Dec 18 2023 DRAFT

Figure 4. Percent Population Under 18 and Over 55, 1990-2020
Source: Decennial Census, 1990 and 2020

Figure 4A. Percent Under 18, 1990 - 2020

Mashpee
24%

14%
Barnstable County
21%

19%
Massachusetts
22%

22%
United States
26%

0% 20% 40% 60%

m 2020 m 1990

Figure 4B, Percent Over 55, 1990-2020

Mashpee

Barnstable County

31%
Massachusetts
30%
United States
{
|
0% 20% 40%

= 2020 = 1990

R

60%



; -

e
SANDWICH

) |
| FALMOUTH

Map 2. Median Age by Census Block Group

Mashpee Housing Production Plan
Date: November 20, 2023
Data Sources: US Census Bureau, MassGIS, Town of Mashpee

This map is for informational purposes and is not suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. Census block group maps included
in this plan do not include Census Tract 141 Block Group 1, which
extends from NW Mashpee into Bourne and Sandwich and
predominently consists of Joint Base Cape Cod.

0 1.5 3 mi
I
Mashpee Wampanoag LAR Median Age

Water Body

D Town Boundary
Roads

Limited Access Highway

Multi-Lane Highway, Not Limited Access

Major Road - Numbered Routes, Arterials, Collectors
Minor Street or Road

[[]a2-462

[]46.2-504
[ 50.4-54.7
Il 547-589
Il s8.9-63.1



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

These shifts in population age may necessitate two responses — addressing the evolving housing needs of
older residents, and considering what housing options would better enable families with children to

remain in or move to Mashpee.

RACE, ETHNICITY, AND CULTURE

Minority Population

The percent of Mashpee’s population identifying as a racial or ethnic minority increased from about 12
percent to 16 between 2010 and 2020. Like the county and state, the largest specific minority group
increase was across two or more races, increasing from 3 to 6 percent among non-Hispanic populations
(Table 1) and 3 to 7 percent among the total population. Map 3.displays the percent minority population
across Mashpee by census block group and shows that the southern half of the town has less minority
representation than the northern half.?

Table 1. Race and Ethnicity, 2010 and 2020

Mashpee Barnstable County Massachusetts
2010 | 2020 2010 | 2020 2010 2020
Not Hispanic or Latino 97.8% | 97.3% | 97.8% |  96.5% | 90.4% | 87.4%
White alone 87.7% 84.4% 91.4% 85.0% | 76.1% 67.6%
African American/Black alone 22% | 23%| 18% 28%| 60%, 65%
American Indian/Alaska Native alone 2.9% 2.7% 0.5% 0.5% 0.2% 0.1%
Asian alone 1.2% | 1% | 1.0% |  14% | 53% | 7.2%
Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander alone 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other 09% @ 13% | 1.1% 15% | 09% | 1.3%
Two or More Races 2.7% | 55% | 2.0% 5.4% | 1.9% | 4.7%
Hispanic or Latino, All Races 2.2% E 2.7% 2.2% 3.5% 9.6% 12.6%
Percent Minority :
(Not Hispanic or Latino, all races except White; 12.3% | 15.6% 8.6% 15.0% | 24.9% 32.4%
Hispanic or Latino, all races) |

Source: Decennial Census 2010 and 2020

3 “Minority” population is determined by subtracting the White, not Hispanic or Latino population from the Total Population.
Hispanic or Latino status is important to consider when determining minority representation, asa White Hispanic or Latino person

would still be considered a minority.



BARNSTABLE

1.5

|
Map 3. Minority Population I Mashpee Wampanoag LAR Percent Minority
by Census Block Group Water Body [ ]e64102%
Mashpee Housing Production Plan D Town Boundary ] 102-14.1%
Date: November 20, 2023 N
Data Sources: US Census Bureau, MassGIS, Town of Mashpee Roads - 14.1-17.9%
This map Is for informational purposes and is not suftable for legal, —— Limited Access Highway - 17.9-21.8%
engingering, or surveying purposes. Census block group maps N . i
included in this plan do not include Census Tract 141 Block Group 1, Multi-Lane Highway, Not Limited Access - 21.8-25.6%

which extends from NW Mashpee inio Bourne and Sandwich and . _ .
predominently consists of Joint Base Cape Cod. -——— Major Road - Numbered Routes, Arterials, Collectors

- Minor Street or Road




Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

K/Iashpee Wampanoag Tribe
The Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe, also known as the People of the First Light, were re-acknowledged as a

federally recognized tribe in 2007. In 2015, the federal government declared 150 acres of land in Mashpee
and 170 acres of land in Taunton as the Tribe’s initial reservation on which the Tribe can exercise its full
tribal sovereignty rights. While the Mashpee Wampanoag tribe currently has approximately 3,200 enrolled
citizens, most do not live in Mashpee due to historical displacement.* The 2020 Census indicates that 684
Mashpee residents identified as “American Indian/Alaska Native,” either alone or in addition to another
race, representing 4.5 percent of the Town'’s population compared to 1.7 percent for Barnstable County.®

Ereign Born Population
An estimated 7 percent of Mashpee residents are foreign-born compared to 10 percent for the county and

18 percent for the state. Of Mashpee’s neighbors, both Falmouth (8 percent) and Barnstable (18 percent)
exceed Mashpee’s share of foreign-born residents.® An estimated 7 percent of households speak languages
other than English (LOTE); most of these households are multilingual and can speak English comfortably,
with less than one percent of Mashpee households estimated to have limited English proficiency (LEP)
compared to two percent for the county and 6 percent for the state. Among the surrounding communities,
Barnstable has the highest estimated share of LEP households at 5 percent.’

DISABILITY
Twelve percent of Mashpee residents live with a disability, a figure in line with the county and state (also

both an estimated 12 percent).? One-fifth of Mashpee residents over 65 have some sort of disability,
which is lower than Barnstable County (26 percent) and the state (31 percent). Table 2 breaks down
disabilities by type, both among Mashpee residents with a disability and among all non-institutionalized
residents. Overall, cognitive difficulties are the most common challenge, closely followed by
independent living difficuities.

Table 2. Disability by Type for Mashpee Residents

% of Non-Institutionalized Pop w Disability % of Total Non-Institutionalized Pop
Hearing Difficulty 36.9% 4.4%
Vision Difficulty 15.2% 1.8%
Cognitive Difficulty 39.2% 4.9%
Ambulatory Difficulty 35.4% 4.5%
Self-Care Difficulty 11.1% 1.4%
Independent Living Difficulty 26.3% 3.5%

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Tables B18101, B18102, B18103, B18104, B18105, B18106, B18107

4 Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe. Accessed November 2023 at https://mashpeewampanoagtribe-nsn.gov/

5 UUS Census Bureau, 2020 Decennial Census, Table DP1. Respondents identifying as “American Indian/Alaska Native” may not be
members of the Mashpee Wampanoag tribe.

& US Census Bureau, American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table BO5007

7 {bid., Table C16002

8 |bid., Table B18101. Note that ACS disability status is calculated using the non-institutionalized population, which means those
fiving in institutionalized “group quarters” settings such as nursing homes are not included.

7



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

1y

Households

Just as Mashpee’s household population is expected to decline leading up to 2050, so are the total number
of households (Figure 5). However, the 2020 Census figures exceed the projected households for 2020, so

this trend may shift from these projections.

Figure 5. Mashpee Households: Actual and Projected
Source: US Census Bureau and MAPC Population Projections

8,000 C6QYY T
6,923 6,496
7,000 6,118 p—— O - 590g o
6,000 5256.... oo 51 _._..——-'-"-O;—- 5,147
5,000 — L O
4,000 - o
3,000 e
2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 2050
—@— Households {Actual) «.-Q--- Households (Projected)
HOUSEHOLD SIZE

Mashpee’s household sizes are smaller than those across the state and nation, although not unique to
Cape Cod; nearly three quarters of Mashpee and county households consist of one or two people, a share
substantially higher than the state and nation (Table 3). Given Cape Cod’s identity as a retirement
community, these smaller household sizes are not surprising.

Table 3. Household Size, 2020

Mashpee Barnstable County Massachusetts United States
1-person household 32.7% 33.0% 28.8% 27.6%
2-person household 40.1% 39.5% 32.2% 32.9%
3-person household 12.2% 12.8% 16.4% 15.6%
4-person househald 9.6% 9.2% 13.8% 13.0%
5-or more person 5.5% 5.5% 8.8% 10.9%

Source: Decennial Census 2020, Table H9

HOUSEHOLD TYPE
Over the past twenty years, the makeup of Mashpee’s households has shifted, with the share of family

households decreasing from about 70 to 62 percent. The US Census Bureau defines a “family” household
as a group of two people or more {one of whom is the householder) related by birth, marriage, or adoption
and residing together; all such people are considered as members of one family. On the other hand, single-
person households increased from 25 percent to 33 percent of all households during this same timeframe

(Table 4).



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan

2024-2029
Table 4. Mashpee Household Type, 2000-2020
2000 2010 2020
Total Households 5,256 6,118 6923
Family 3,651 69.5% 3,906 63.8% 4276 61.8%
Married Couple 2,925 80.1% 3,053 78.2% 3332 77.9%
Other Family 726 19.9% 853 21.8% 944 22.1%
Nonfamily 1,605 30.5% 2,212 36.2% 2647 38.2%
Living Alone 1,312 81.7% 1,871 84.6% 2261 85.4%
Not Living Alone 293 18.3% 341 15.4% 386 14.6%

Source: Decennial Census 2020, Table H14

HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN
Mashpee’s percentage of households with children decreased from 31 percent in 2000 to 17 percent in

2020, outpacing the county which saw a reduction of households with children from 24 percent to 16
percent during the same period. The linear trend lines in Figure 7 show that this shift has been more
dramatic in Mashpee as compared to the county, state, and nation. In addition to having implications for
housing policy, these trends also have affected student enrollment trends.

Schools®

The Town of Mashpee’s public schools include the Kenneth C. Coombs School (grades PK-2), the Quashnet
School (grades 3-6), and Mashpee Middle-High School (grades 7-12). Prior to the 2022-2023 school year,
the district also included Mashpee Middle School, which included grades 7-8 while the High School
included grades 9-12; these two schools merged due to declining enrollment (Figure 8).

Figure 7. Percent Households with Children Under 18, 2000-2020
Source: US Census Bureau, Decennial Census, 2000, 2010, 2020

35.0% —
| Mashpee 30.0%
m=mmm Barnstable County 25.0%

mmmmm Massachusetts
20.0%

United States

Linear (Mashpee) 15.0%

----- Linear (Barnstable County)  10.0%
----- Linear (Massachusetts)

5.0%
______ Linear (United States)

0.0%

2000 2010 2020

s School capacity should not be considered a limiting factor for housing development or when setting housing policy out of
consideration for the Fair Housing Act, which provides protections based on familial status (among other factors).

9




Town of Mashpee .
Housing Production Plan é i
2024-2029 wﬁ BARRETT

The Mashpee Public Schools do not appear to have disproportionate over-
representation of populations with specialized needs. Approximately 15.1 percent of the student
population in Mashpee has disabilities, compared with 19.4 percent statewide. The percentage of English
Language Learners is significantly lower for Mashpee Public Schools (5.3 percent) than the state (12.1
percent).’’ Based on DESE records, there were also nineteen homeless youth receiving McKinney-Vento
services enrolled in the Mashpee Public Schools during the 2021-2022 school year, the most recent year
for which this data is available.'**? The school districts on Cape Cod with higher numbers of known
homeless youth for the 2021-2022 academic year are Barnstable (107), Dennis-Yarmouth (100), Falmouth
(40), Monomoy Regional School District (40), and Bourne (22).

Figure 8. Mashpee Public Schools - Total Student Enroliment
Source: MA Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, District Profile

2,000

1,800 — — —

1,600 - — —

1,400 .

1,200 et -

1,000 = -
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021 2022

Mashpee is a School Choice receiving district, with specific grades open for enroliment
annually based on availability. Under the School Choice pragram, parents or guardians can send children
to public schools in participating communities, with tuition being paid for by the sending district to the
receiving district. For the last three years for which data is available, the Mashpee Public School system
received more students from other communities than it sent out to other districts (Figure 9). Under local

10 MA Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, Mashpee Public Schools Profile, 2022-2023.

11 McKinney-Vento data for all public school districts in the state provided by the MA Department of Elementary and Secondary
Education upon request in September 2022. As of November 2023, DESE did not yet have more current data available.

12 Ynder the McKinney-Vento Act, funding is provided to school districts to provide select services to homeless youth to ensure
their continued education. The definition of homeless under McKinney-Vento includes students in households who are “doubling
up” (i.e., multiple households temporarily sharing a single housing unit) due to loss of housing. In Mashpee’s case, twelve of the
nineteen homeless students accounted for were doubling up.

10



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

preference policies for affordable housing opportunities, the families of these students attending the
Mashpee Public Schools are considered “local” even if the household does not currently reside in

Figure 9. School Choice Enrollment Trends for the Mashpee Public Schools
Source: MA DESE, School Choice Trends in Enrollment and Tuition

140 -
120 +

100 -

Full Time Equivalent {(FTE) Pupils

2019 2020 2021 2022

m Receiving FTEs  m Sending FTEs

Mashpee.

AGE OF HOUSEHOLDER

Under census definitions, a “householder” is the person,
or one of the people, in whose name the home is owned,
being bought, or rented. Each household only has one
householder for census-reporting purposes. Both at the
local and county level, 45 percent of householders are age
65+ compared to 28 percent for the state and 27 percent
for the nation. While the share of householders age 45-64
is fairly equal across geographies (37-38 percent), the
share of householders under 45 is quite different across
geographies — 17 percent for Mashpee compared to 34
percent for the state and 36 percent for the nation. Map
5 displays the share of householders age 65+ by census
block group, showing similar geographic distribution to
the median age for Mashpee’s total population as shown
in Map 2.

11

Figure 10. Age of Householder
Source: US Census Bureau, 2020
Decennial Census, Table H13

1%

| 16%

45%

38%

= Age 15-24 m Age 25-44
m Age 45-64 © Age 65+



1Y
£
I
]

L 5
-~ ¢

-7 Sl B, E B
BARNSTABLE ¢ /i .

x

0 15 3 mi
|

Map 4. Households with Own
Children by Census Block Group

Mashpee Housing Production Plan
Date: November 20, 2023
Data Sources; US Census Bureau, MassGIS, Town of Mashpee

This map is for informational purposes and is not suilable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. Census block group maps
included in this plan do not include Census Tract 141 Block Group 1,
which extends from NW Mashpee into Bourne and Sandwich and
pradominently consists of Joint Base Cape Cod.

I Mashpee Wampanoag LAR
Water Body
[ Town Boundary

Roads
—— Limited Access Highway

Multi-Lane Highway, Not Limited Access

Minor Street or Road

Households w Own Children

[ ]10.213.8%
[] 13.8-17.3%
I 17.3-20.9%

Il 20.9-24.4%
Il 24.4-28.0%

Major Road - Numbered Routes, Arterials, Collectors



1.5

O 00 |
Map 5. Householder Age 65+ Il Mashpee Wampanoag LAR Householder Age 65+
by Census Block Group Water Body [] 28.534.5%
th:tsel?pNe:vl:;%sei:golTrgg;gﬂon Plan D Town Boundary 34.540.5%
Data Sources: US Census Bureau, MassGIS, Town of Mashpee Roads 40.546.5%
This map is for informational purposes and is not suitable for legal, Limited Access Highway - 46.5-52.5%
engineering, or surveying purposes. Census block group maps Multi-Lane Highway, Not Limited Access - 52.5-58.6%

included in this plan do not include Gensus Tract 141 Block Group 1,

which extends from NW Mashpee into Bourne and Sandwich and ______ < R :

predominently consists of Joint Basa Cape Cod. Major Road - Numbered Routes, Arterials, Collectors
——— Minor Street or Road




Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

The economic profile of a community examines socioeconomic characteristics of its population and
households, its labor force (residents over age 16 either working or looking for work), and its employment
base (jobs within a community). These factors connect to housing primarily when considering whether
area wages are compatible with housing costs.

What is a labor force?

A community’s labar force includes all civilian residents over the age of 16 who are either currently employed or
are actively seeking employment. A lower labor force participation rate means there are more residents over age
16 who are unemployed and not looking for work, perhaps because they have retired, have a disability that
prevents them from working, are a stay-at-home parent by choice, or are a full-time student not looking for work.
The labor force participation rate should not be confused with the unemployment rate, which is based upon those
in the labor force who are not working.

What is an economic base?
An economic base refers to all of the wage and salary jobs within a community. Self-employed positions do not

count as part of a community’s economic base.

Conversations about income often focus on the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Area Median Family Income (HAMFI), which is updated annually according to household sizes for larger
geographies known as HUD Fair Market Rent/Income Limits Areas (HMFAs). Mashpee is part of the
“Barnstable Town, MA USA” HMFA, which includes all of Barnstable County. Since 2021, the HAMFI for
Barnstable County has increased by $35,000, as shown in Figure 11.

Figure 11. HUD Area Median Family Income (HAMFI) for Barnstable County, 2010-2023

$140,000 R — —
$124,300

$115,600

$120,000 -  a

$100,000 dm e e e e e aggr0g - 4915300 -

479,000 $80,300 $96,600

$74,900
$60,000 275300 $74,900 $77,100

$80,000 i
$80,000

540,000 e _

$20,000 m e

0 ———— = —

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

14



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Table 5 below expands upon the HAMFI to show the income limits by household size and pairs this with
sample households to provide local context. The assumed wage data for sample households is based upon
2022 Employment and Wages Reports (ES-202) from the MA Department of Economic Research, as well
as salary information for local public sector jobs.

Table 5. 2023 Income Limits for Barnstable County

Sample Household Size

Income Level
Househaolds 1 2 3 4 5 6

30% HAMEFI An elderly couple
living on social 424,200 $27,650 $31,100 $34,550 $37,350 $40,280

security

50% HAMFI A single retail
worker

A policé officer,
stay-at-hame
parent, and four
children

$40,300 $46,050 $51,800 $57,550 $62,200 $66,800

80% HAMFI A single parent
police officer and
one child

A construction $64,450 573,560 $82,850 $92,050 $99,450 $106,800
worker, home

health aide, and
three children

100% HAMFI Two masters-
level teachers
with three years’

experience and
three children $80,550 $91,950 $103,550 $115,050 $124,300 $133,500

A single senior ‘
level municipal |
staff person ‘

HOUSEHOLD TYPE AND INCOME

HUD compiles a data set known as Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) data, which is
based upon American Community Survey five-year estimates and is compiled to demonstrate the extent
of housing problems and housing needs, particularly for low income households. Within this dataset,

households are defined as either:

e Elderly family: two people in family, at least one householder age 62 or older

15



Housing Production Plan

Town of Mashpee

2024-2029

e Small family: two people in family, neither age 62 or older; or three to four people in family

e Large family: five or more people in family

e Elderly non-family: generally adults age 62 or older living alone or within a nonfamily household

e Other household type: non-elderly, non-family, such as single persons under age 62 living alone
or without roommates.

Table 6 shows the share of each household type by income level. Non-family households are most likely
to be low or moderate income (LMI), a category including all households earning no more than 80 percent
HAMFI; 60 percent of elderly non-family households and 59 percent of other household types are

considered LMI.

Table 6. Household Type and Income Level

Household Type | Elderly Family (Szm4a ::: ::2::) t;:g: e';::lr:ls‘)l Eldglr:ill\;on- g _l:yzu;sehold

Count 1,590 2,130 250 1,575 1,025
% of All Households 24% 32% 4% 24% 16%
Up to 30% HAMFI 2% 10% 8% 25% 24%

o | >30% to 50% HAMFI 10% 12% 26% 23% 19%
g >50% to 80% HAMFI 20% 7% 6% 18% 16%
£ >80% to 100% HAMFI 9% 9% 6% 10% 13%
>100% HAMFI 59% 62% 54% 24% 28%

Source: CHAS 2016-2020, Table 7

Typically, median family income is higher than median household income, and Mashpee is no exception.
Median household income is based upon both family and non-family households, whereas median family
income only includes families, which as Table 6 indicates are less likely to be LMI. Figure 11 compares the
estimated median family incomes and household incomes for Mashpee, Barnstable County, and
Massachusetts. Mashpee has the greatest discrepancy between these figures, with a ratio of 1.36
compared to 1.30 for the county and 1.26 for the state. Maps 6 and 7 display median household and family
income by census block group in Mashpee, showing concentrations of higher incomes in the New Seabury

and Popponesset areas.

$150,000

$100,000

$50,000

S0

Figure 11. Median Family and Median Household Incomes
Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Tables B19113 and B19013

el 883,563 <] $82,619-
|
| S
|'
|
Mashpee Barnstable County

16

$112,543
989,026,

i
i

Massachusetts

= Median Family Income

m Median Household Income



SANDWICH

BARNSTABLE

N

(0] 1.5
L e —
Map 6. Median Household Income I Mashpee Wampanoag LAR Median Household Income
by Census Block Group Water Body [] ¢s8,523 - $69,838
Mashpee Housing Production Plan $69,838 - $81,152
Date: November 20, 2023 D Town Boundary ]
Data Sources: US Census Bureau, MassGIS, Town of Mashpee Roads - $81,152 - $92,467
This map Is for informational purposes and is not suitable for legal, —— Limited Access Highway Bl 592,467 - $103,781
engineering, or surveying purposes. Census block group maps , . .
included in this plan do not include Census Tract 141 Block Group 1, —— Mutti-L.ane Highway, Not Limited Access - $103,781 - $115,096
which extends from NW Mashpee into Bourne and Sandwich and Major Road

predominently consists of Joint Base Cape Cod.
Minor Street or Road




N u\/",v Vi '/\?\.M
i snwin BARNSTABLE

e~

0 1.5 3 mi

> T
Map 7. Median Family Income Il Mashpee Wampanoag LAR Median Family Income
by Census Block Group Water Body (] $54,375 - $80,861
Mashpee Housing Production Plan 80.861 - $107.347
Date: November 20, 2023 D Town Boundary [ sso, $107.34
Data Sources: US Census Bureau, MassGIS, Town of Mashpee Roads - $107,347 - $133,834
This map is for informational purposes and is not suitable for legal, ~—— Limited Access Highway B $133.834 - $160,320
engineering, or surveying purposes. Census block group maps . . .
included in this plan do not include Census Tract 141 Block Group 1, ——— Muiti-Lane Highway, Not Limited Access - $160,320 - $186,806
which extends from NW Mashpee into Bourne and Sandwich and Major Road

predominently consists of Joint Base Cape Cod.
Minor Street or Road




Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Mashpee is estimated to have only a slightly lower share of households living in poverty than the county
— although the breakdown of those households by type differs. Family households in Mashpee are less
likely to be living in poverty (representing 24 percent of those households living in poverty compared to
36 percent for Barnstable County and 39 percent for Massachusetts (Table 7). In Mashpee, a considerably
smaller share of households living in poverty are nonfamily 65+ households (17 percent) compared to

Barnstable County (32 percent).*?

Table 7. Households Living in Poverty

! Mashpee | Barnstable County Ll\ll_gs;ag:hqsetts_ i
Below Poverty | 7.1% | 7.5% 10.7%
_ Family Households _ 24.2% | 36.4% 38.9%
Nonfamily Households | 75.8% 63.6% 61.1%

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates, Table B17017

LABOR FORCE
A community’s labor force includes all civilian residents over the age of 16 who are either currently

employed or are actively seeking employment. Mashpee has an estimated civilian labor force of 7,875,
with 7,500 employed in a variety of industries.** ACS estimates indicate that over 27 percent of Mashpee’s
labor force is employed in educational services, health care, or social assistance, as shown in Table 8. An
estimated 34 percent of working Mashpee residents work in the community, which is a lower share of
individuals working in their municipality of residence across the county (43 percent).?® This difference
reinforces feedback from the community engagement process that people who work in Mashpee may
struggle to afford to live in the community.

Table 8. Top Five Industries for Mashpee’s Labor Force

Industry | % Resident Labor Force

Educational Services; Health Care and Social Assistance 27.3%

Professional, Scientific, Management; Administrative and Waste Management Services 14.2%
Retail Trade 13.9%

Arts, Entertainment, And Recreation, And Accommodation And Food Services 8.4%
Construction 7.7%

All Other Industries Combined 28.6%

Sources: ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B12006, Barrett Planning Group

13 ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B17017
14 ACS S5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B12006
15 ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table BO8009

19



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

EMPLOYMENT BASE
A community’s employment base includes its wage and salary jobs. People counted in the employment

base may or may not live in Mashpee, and the employment base does not include self-employed people.’®
The overlap of a community’s labor force (residents over age 16 either working or looking for work) and
its employment base (jobs within a community) can indicate a greater opportunity for residents to find
suitable work near where they live. On the other hand, large disparities between the labor force and
employment base can mean that there is greater economic inequity between the people who live in a
community and those who work there. The industries of Mashpee’s employment base (Table 9) somewhat
overlap with those of its labor force (Table 8 above); however, the top industry for those who work in
Mashpee is retail trade, which has an average weekly wage of $740."" Table 9 displays the percentage of
Mashpee's employment base within select industries, broken down into year-round and seasonal
timeframes. Table 9 also displays the average weekly wages by industry within Mashpee as compared to
Barnstable County. In other words — for every dollar earned by Barnstable County’s employment base, a

participant in Mashpee’s employment base earns $0.87.

Table 9. Percent Local Jobs by Industry

Timeframe Average Weekly Wages
[AEa Year-Round | Sep-May | Jun-Aug Mashpee County Ta“:";::;:;?:ty
Retail Trade 20% 21% 19% S740 5846 0.875
Health Care and Social Assistance 15% 16% 14% $1,107 $1,313 0.843
Accommodation and Food Services 13% 12% 15% S601 $722 0.832
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 8% 6% 13% S812 S802 1.012
Construction 8% 9% 7% $1,330 $1,411 0.943
Administrative and Waste Services 6% 6% 6% 51,038 $1,141 0.910
Other Services, Except Public Administration 6% 6% 5% 5944 5920 1.026
Wholesale Trade 4% 4% 4% $1,268 $1,567 0.809
Professional and Technical Services 4% 4% 3% $1,376 $1,626 0.846
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 2% 2% 2% 51,255 $1,201 1.045
Manufacturing 1% 1% 1% $541 $1,410 0.384
Finance and Insurance 1% 1% 1% $1,788 $2,204 0.811
All Jobs 5,231 4,975 6,001 $1,003 $1,155 0.868

Sources: MA Department of Economic Research, 2022 Employment and Wages Reports (ES-202), Barrett Planning Group

16 An estimated 11 percent of Mashpee residents are self-employed compared to 15 percent for the county
and 9 percent for the state. ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B08128

17 £S202

20



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

EDUCATION
Approximately 40 percent of Mashpee residents over age 25 have a bachelor’s degree or higher, which is

slightly lower than the county and state, both estimated at 45 percent (Figure 11). Of the neighboring
communities, Falmouth has the highest share of residents age 25+ with a bachelor’s or higher (50 percent)

and Barnstable is on par with Mashpee at about 40 percent.'®

Figure 11. Educational Attainment for Population Age 25+
Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021

30% P
25% Ft
20% — o e
15% P i: I“
o, — 1SN
10% r 'ﬂ
5% !
0% [ I ”
Less Than High High School Some College, Associate's Bachelor's Master's Degree
School Diploma Diploma or No Degree Degree Degree or Higher
Equivalent

» Mashpee m Barnstable County = MA

18 ACS21_5yr:B15003. Educational Attainment For The Population 25 Years And Over

21



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

This section provides an overview of Mashpee’s current housing stock, including its growth over time and
characteristics including housing type, size, and age. Over the past thirty years, Mashpee’s housing unit
count has grown by over 3,700, rising from 7,002 units in 1990 to 10,757 in 2020.*° An estimated 71
percent of Mashpee’s housing units are detached single-family homes, a figure lower than Barnstable
County (81 percent) but significantly higher than the state (52 percent).’ Mashpee also has a
comparatively newer housing stock, with the majority of housing units in structures built in 1980 or later.
This surge in newer housing units makes sense considering Mashpee’s population more than tripled
between 1980 and 2000, growing from 3,700 to 12,946 (see Figure 1).

Age of Housing Stock

According to American Community Survey estimates, Mashpee’s housing stock is generally newer than
other Cape Cod communities — and the Cape has a relatively newer housing stock than Massachusetts as
a whole (Figure 12). Mashpee has by far has fewer extant residential structures built in 1939 or earlier
than its neighboring communities — and in fact is estimated to have the lowest share of all individual Cape
communities. On the newer end, over 70 percent of Mashpee’s housing units were built after 1980. ! This
breakdown carries over to occupied housing units as well, with an estimated 71 percent of Mashpee
households living in housing units built after 1980, compared to 47 percent for Barnstable County and 30

percent for the state.?

Figure 12. Year Residential Structure Built for Mashpee Housing Units
Source: ACS 5-Year Esimates, 2017-2021, Table B25034

100%
80%
m Built 1939 Or Earlier
60% ® Built 1940 to 1959
20% w Built 1960 to 1979
# Built 1980 to 1999
20% Built 2000 or Later
0% - — — ~

Mashpee Barnstable County Massachusetts

19 |JS Census Bureau, Decennial Census, 1990 and 2020, Housing Units
20 ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B25024
21 ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B25034
22 ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B25127

22



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

i

Assessor’s records provide additional insight show that the median year built for Mashpee’s extant
residential structures by type is as follows: 1986 for single-family detached homes, 1988 for
condominiums, and 1985 for two- or three-family homes.

Housing Types

As shown in Table 10, Mashpee has a much
higher share of “single family attached” units
(such as townhouse condominiums) than
neighboring communities. Of the upper cape
communities, Bourne has the next highest
share at an estimated 7 percent, and
Sandwich has the lowest share at 3 percent.?®

Assessor’s records reveal a similar picture,
although there is some difference and overlap
in definitions. To wit, what ACS refers to as “1,
Attached” is typically thought of as a
townhouse - that is, an attached single-family
unit with no other residential units above or
below, and sharing an internal wall from
ground to roof with an adjacent unit. These
units may be rented or (more commonly)
owned. When they are owned, they are
considered a condominium for assessing
purposes, whereas when such a unit is rented,
it is likely part of a two- or three-family
structure assessed as one property. Likewise,
“1, Detached” refers to a single family
detached structure — vyet for assessing
purposes, these physical structures may be

[ Table 10. Units in Structure_

Barnstable

Mashpee Massachusetts
County

1, Detached 71.3% 81.4% 51.7%
1, Attached 13.6% 5.2% 5.6%
2 1.6% 2.3% 1‘ 9.6%
3or4 4.7% 3.5% 10.7%
5to9 4.3% 2.7% 5.8%
10to 19 0.8% 1.2% 4.3%
20to 49 0.4% 1.5% 4.4%
50 or More 1.0% 1.4% 7.0%
Mobile Home 2.2% 0.6% 0.8%
Boat, Rv, Van, Etc. 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B25024

[ Table 11. Mashpee Residential Structures by Type

# Properties
Single Family Detached 7,257
Condominium 2,825
Two-Family 50
Three-Family 2
Multiple Homes on One Parcel 36
Apts (Incl. Housing Authority) 6
Mixed Use 11
Total 10,187

Est. # Units
7,257

2,825

100

B

72

210

75

10,545

Source: Town of Mashpee Assessor’s Records, FY2023

held in a condominium form of ownership (whereby inside of the unit is owned and maintained by an
individual owner, whereas the exterior of the building and the surrounding property is separately owned,
generally by a condominium association). Despite these overlaps in definitions, the connection between
local Assessor’s records and ACS estimates is clear, with 27 percent of Mashpee’s residential units
considered condominiums for assessing and an estimated 14 percent of units considered attached single
family — both figures higher than surrounding communities. Table 11 lists residential structures by type
according to Mashpee’s Assessor’s records, and Map 8 displays these properties.

23 hid.

23

BARRELT



g

0 15 3 mi
| .
Map 8. Residential Type Il Mashpee Wampanoag LAR ~ Residential Type

Mashpee Housing Production Plan
Date: November 20, 2023
Data Sources: US Census Bureau, MassG!S, Town of Mashpee

This map is for informational purposes and Is not suitable for legal,
engineering, or Surveying purposes.

Water Body

D Town Boundary

Roads
—— Limited Access Highway

Single Family Detatched
Condominiums

[ Other Residential

I Apartments

——— Highway, Not Limited Access B Mixed Use with Some Residential

———— Major Road
-—-— Minor Street or Road



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

SINGLE FAMILY HOMES

As shown in Figure 13, Cape-style homes are most
common among Mashpee’s detached single-family
homes (34%), followed by ranches (28%), colonials

(13%), and contemporary (13%).* The remaining 13 " Cape
percent of detached single-family homes consist of a mix 34% A = Ranch
including conventional, bungalow, raised ranch, split o = Colonial
level, and other home styles. Table 12 below indicates < Contemporary
the most common style for homes built during different ; /= Other

periods, as well as other notable features including the
average residential floor area, lot sizes, and number of
rooms. Most single-family homes in Mashpee were built in 1960 or later, with nearly half (49 percent) built
between 1980 and 1999. Average lot sizes for homes built in the early 1900s are larger (approximately 1
acre), while the homes themselves are generally smaller (about 1,200 square feet). Single family homes
built in 1980 or later are mostly larger homes (over 2,000 square feet) built on smaller lots (around half an
acre). Total assessed value is nearly double for newer single family homes: for houses built prior to 2000,
the average total assessed value was approximately $675,000, but for those built within the last 20 years,
average total assessed value is over $1.2 million.

Homes built since 1980 tend to be larger and hold more building value compared to the land, as shown by
the ratio of average land values to average building values. A ratio under 1.0 indicates that the buildings
on average are more valuable than the land, in large part due to the trend toward larger homes.
Conversely, ratios over 1.0 indicate that the land on average is more valuable than the buildings. This is
more common for older homes, potentially putting them at greater risk of teardown, as a new or existing
owner of an older home may choose to demolish and rebuild rather than repair, renovate, or maintain a
home in poor condition. Together, Map 9 (Year Built for Single Family Homes) and Map 10 (Improvement
Value to Land Value Ratio for Single Family Homes) show this relationship between age of housing stock
and the ratio of building value to land value.

Figure 13. Style of Mashpee's Single Family Homes
Source: Town of Mashpee Assessor's Records, FY2023

Table 12. Summary of Single-Family Homes in Mashpee

vearuit | Enles | Merssed | Averago | Mecagetes | SRS | uetooes) | assesedvalue | niv | Nivmeio | MostCammon iyl
Pre-1900 5] =58 15 1,039 60,482 1.39 $319,060 0.83 60% | Conventional (60%)
1900-1919 10 5.7 1.7 1,416 54,295 1.25 $594,170 0.64 90% | Conventional (40%)
1920-1939 71 5.2 13 1,218 42,688 0.98 $647,228 0.71 77% | Ranch (37%)
©1940-1959 440 5.4 i1 1,141 17,985 0.41 $817,601 0.47 89% | Ranch (66%)
1960-1979 1,616 6.1 1.3 1,466 16,333 0.37 $646,579 098]  50% | Ranch (43%)
1980-1999 3,567 6.2 1.6 1,828 | 21,259 0.49 $672,699 1.48 15% | Cape (48%)
2000-2019 1,313 6.8 1.7 2638 | 22,872 0.53 $1,240,471 2.03 16% | Cape (27%)
2020-2022 233 6.5 1.8 2,629 15,300 0.35 $1,154,556 1.74 28% | NS Cottage (44%)
All SF Homes | 7,255 6.2 1.5 1,871 | 20,346 0.47 $793,298 1.41 29% | Cape (34%)

Source: FY24 Assessor’s Records, Town of Mashpee, via MassGIS

*There are 2 entries in which year built is 0. These homes were excluded from this analysis.

24 Town of Mashpee Assessor’s Records, FY 2024.



i

| BARNSTABLE

~

ot T

/

ZSANDWICH™ )

:
-\
a.,[\

3 mi

15

Il Mashpee Wampanoag LAR ~ Year Built

ly Homes

Year Built for Single Fam

Mashpee Housing Production Plan
Date: November 20, 2023

Map 9

Il Pre-1920

Water Body

D Town Boundary

I 1920-1939

Data Sources: US Census Bureau, MassGIS, Town of Mashpee

I 1960-1979

I 1940-1959

ted Access Highway

imi

Roads
— L

This map is for informational purposes and is not suitable for legal,

engineering, or surveying purposes.

—— Highway, Not Limited Access |

1980-1899

2000

-2021

—— Major Road

Minor Street or Road

Lt

i,

=
o
<
o~




;T e

N

i
~ SANDW|CH'

S
v

- \‘- & |

Falt

A
SSANDWICH

Tl

a. -
L

0 1.5
[ I

Map 10. Improvent Value to Land Value
Ratio for Single Family Homes

Mashpee Housing Production Plan
Date: November 20, 2023
Data Sources: US Census Bureau, MassGIS, Town of Mashpee

This map is for informational purposes and is not suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes.

I Mashpee Wampanoag LAR  Improvement-to-Land Value Ratio

Water Body 0.0-0.50
D Town Boundary 0.50-0.75
Roads [0 075-0.95

—— Limited Access Highway [ 0.95-1.05

—— Highway, Not Limited Access [ 1.05- 1.50

——— Major Road B 1.50-2.00
Minor Street or Road I 2.0 or higher



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

CONDOMINIUMS
As Table 11 highlights, Mashpee has a large number of condominium properties. While often used

interchangeably to describe townhouses, the term “condominium” simply refers to the ownership
structure rather than a particular building type; the owner of a condominium owns and is responsible for
the inside of the unit, while a condominium association typically owns and is responsible for the land,
maintenance of the buildings’ exterior, shared spaces, etc. While many condominiums exist in townhouse
structures, they can also be detached single family structures. Condominium neighborhoods exist
throughout Mashpee, with larger established neighborhoods include Southport, a recently built 55+ active
living community with 749 condominiums; Windchime, 156 townhouse-style condominiums built in 2003;
several condominium associations in the New Seabury area; and condominiums located at the Willowbend

Country Club.

MIXED USE

While Map 8 shows several mixed-use properties throughout Mashpee, Mashpee Commons is the most
notable example of residential uses co-located with commercial uses. Some other mixed-use examples are
scattered throughout town in the C-2 and C-3 zoning districts and along Great Neck Road North. Mashpee’s
zoning precludes new mixed-use development unless created under the Town’s Open Space Incentive
Design (OSID) bylaw, as explained in the regulatory barriers analysis later in this Needs Assessment.*

APARTMENTS
Most of Mashpee’s multifamily units are owned or managed by Mashpee Housing Authority (MAH):

e The oldest of MAH’s properties, Homeyer Village was built in 1989 and includes twenty-four one-
bedroom apartments for elderly/disabled tenants. Residents pay approximately 30 percent of
their income to rent each month, with utilities included.

e Builtin 1991, Breezy Acres consists of six three-bedroom family units. Residents pay approximately
30 percent of their income to rent each month, plus utilities.

e Asher’s Path was built in 2007 and is a single two-story building with fifty-six one-bedroom units.
Rent is fixed {currently $875 per month) and includes heat and hot water.

e In partnership with Housing Assistance Corporation, MAH manages Great Cove Community, built
in 2014 and consisting of ten two- and three-bedroom family units.*

Other than MAH’s properties, Mashpee Village is the only other sizable example of multifamily housing in
Mashpee. Mashpee Village was built 1974-1975 and includes 110 apartments surrounded by thirty-five
single-family homes.

25 Certain accessory non-residential uses are allowed as part of a residence under § 174-25 Table of Use Regulations, . Accessory
uses.
26 Mashpee Housing Authority, “Properties Managed.” Accessed December 2023 at https://mashpeehousing.org/properties

28



Town of Mash pee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Tenure

Cape Cod households are not only much more likely to own their homes as compared to households
across Massachusetts, but Cape Cod homeowners are also more likely to have paid off their homes, as
shown in Table 13. Mashpee households are more likely to own than in Barnstable County as a whole,
although county-wide more owner households have paid off their mortgages.

Table 13. Tenure

Mashpee Barnstable County Massachusetts

Owner-Occupied 84% 78% 60%
Owned free and Clear 33% | 36% 28%
Owned with Mortgage 67% 64% 72%
_Renter-Occu pied 16% 1 22% 40%

Source: Decennial Census, 2020, Table H4

Mashpee homeowners are more likely older and wealthier than renters (Figure 14 and Table 14), although
this is not unique to Mashpee. The likelihood of owning one’s home in Mashpee steadily increases for
each age cohort except householders 85 or older, where the breakdown shifts downward (although the
vast majority of Mashpee householders age 85+ still own their homes). While Mashpee owner households
have significantly higher estimated household incomes than renters, the difference is less extreme than
for Barnstable County and Massachusetts, as demonstrated by the ratio of these two figures included in
Table 15; for both the county and state, owner households earn more than two times as much as renter

households.

Figure 14. Percent Owner Households by Age for Mashpee Households
Source: US Decennial Census 2020, Table H13

Householder 85 years and over #! l
Householder 75 to 84 years _
Householder 65 to 74 years !—
Householder 60 to 64 years *
Householder 55 to 59 years |
Househalder 45 to 54 years | —
Householder 35 to 44 years _
Householder 25 to 34 years I—

Householder 15 to 24 years i

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan

2024-2029
Table 14. Median Household Income by Tenure
Mashpee Barnstable County ~ Massachusetts
All Households $83,563 $82,619 $89,026
Owner Households $88,889 $93,685 $117,036
Renter Households $47,854 $43,789 $50,644
Ratio 1.86 2.14 231

“Source: ACS Five-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B25119

At the time of the 2020 census, 36 percent of Mashpee’s total housing units were vacant, a figure higher
than any surrounding communities, although lower than Barnstable County due to the skew toward
second homes on the Lower and Outer Cape (Figure 15). Of Mashpee’s vacant units, 89 percent were
considered seasonal, recreational, or occasional use. This breakdown has nat shifted considerably since
the 2010 Census, although also does not take into account the significant housing market shifts that have

occurred since COVID.

Figure 15. Percent Total Units for Seasonal Use
Source: US Census Bureau, Decennial Census 2020, Table DP1

Mashpee mEemm=———=—s—=uau——e=———=—=————mma=——=m—=——=—=1 31.7% ;
Barnstable — 20.2% '

I
Falmouth _ 30.3%

Bourne — 19.8%

Sandwich _ 5144%

Barnstable County “ 32. 9%

Massachusetts e 3.6% %

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Table 15. Registered Short Term Rentals

During the engagement process for this plan,

participants expressed varying levels of concern _Community Registered STRs
regarding short term rentals (STRs) in the community, _Mashpee 672
citing concerns relating to changing neighborhood Bourne _ 424
character to loss of year round rentals. While Mashpee  Falmouth 1,411
has far fewer STRs than Barnstable or Falmouth (Table  sandwich ] 613 -
15), the ratio of Mashpee’s registered STRs to its total  garnstable 1,549

housing units is the same as Falmouth (.062) and  Source: MA Executive Office of Economic
exceeds Barnstable (.056 percent) Development, Public Registry of Lodging Operators

30



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Development Trends

Building permits are a good indicator of housing activity within a town because they show the
predominant types of development activity in a given year. From 2017-2022, building permits were issued
for 345 single-family or condominium homes, twelve 2-family homes, seventy assisted living units at
Laurentide, and eleven accessory apartments.?’ While the barriers analysis later in this section explains
the regulatory constraints to creating any housing type other than single family homes or accessory
apartments, it is important to note here that any condominium or two-family homes accounted for in the
above figures was tied to older special permits and would not currently be buildable unless under the
Town’s Open Space Incentive Development bylaw.

The most recently permitted affordable housing developments have included scattered ownership units
developed by Habitat for Humanity of Cape Cod and thirty-two units of the Phase 1A Mashpee Commons
40B project, while a new 39-unit affordable development (LeClaire Village) is nearing completion.

Housing Sales Prices

Across the nation home prices rapidly increased in 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. As Figure
16 shows, this trend is continuing despite the fact that the number of sales decreased after 2020. While
Figure 16 only shows median sales prices for single family homes through 2022, as of October 2023, the
2023 median single family home price in Mashpee was over $700,000, indicating that this trend is

continuing.
Figure 16. Single Family Home Sale Trends for Mashpee
Source: Banker & Tradesman "Town Stats" Report
$750,000 - 450
$700,000 400
$650,000 350
$600,000 300
$550,000 250
$500,000 200
$450,000 150
$400,000 100
$350,000 ~-— 50
$300,000 S 0
'19& ,\96” ,190“ @Q" SRS q’@‘b '19@ »@9 ’19'\,"' ’\9'\'}' '19'@ ,\9\?‘ q/g'\‘,” q,@‘f’ "9'\',\ ,»Q'\‘P ,\9'\9 '19'\9 ,\9'1?’ m@'}

—@&— SF Median Sales Price, Inflation-Adjusted (Left Axis) B SF Number of Sales (Right Axis)}

27 Eyan Lehrer, Town of Mashpee Town Planner, email to Alexis Lanzillotta, Barrett Planning Group dated August 10, 2023

31



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Cost of Rent

Market rate rent prices are harder to quantify because the estimated median gross rent provided for in
the American Community Survey also factors in subsidized rents, such as those paid by tenants of Mashpee
Housing Authority properties or users of Housing Choice Vouchers. This can significantly pull the median
down and necessitates further market analysis. However, conducting such a market analysis is challenging
in a community with very few rental listings at any given time. Table 16 pulls these data sources together,
showing Mashpee’s estimated median gross rent, as well as median rents for rental listings within the past
two years — with a caveat that these numbers are based on a very small sample size.

Table 16. Mashpee Rents by Bedroom

Barnstable County Median Grass Rent Mashpee Rent Survey, Past 24 Months
Fair Market Rent {2023) {Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates, (Source: Rgntometer)
(Source: HUD) B25031) Median Rent l Sample Size
1-bedroom $1,553 $855 $1,400 18
2-bedroom $2,044 $1,403 ‘ $1,561 | 10
3-bedroom $2,501 $1,602 | $2,400 l 5
4-bedroom $2,781 $2,581 ‘ No Data ‘ No Data

Housing Affordability

HOUSING COST BURDEN
One metric for understanding housing affordability is HOUSING COST BURDEN. The U.S. Department of

Housing and Urban Development (HUD) defines cost-burdened households as those paying more than 30
percent of their income toward housing costs, and severely cost-burdened households as those paying
more than 50 percent. Cost-burdened households have fewer funds left over for other expenses such as
food, transportation, clothing, childcare, and medical care. This strain makes it difficult for these
households to “get ahead” financially as they struggle to meet these necessities, let alone establish
savings. In Mashpee, an estimated 37 percent of all households are cost-burdened compared to 33 percent
for Barnstable County and 32 percent for Massachusetts.?® Figure 18 displays the level of cost burden for
households at different income levels using the Household Area Median Family Income (HAMFI, also
abbreviated AMI for Area Median Income). While there is need at all levels, the lower income households
are much more likely to be cost-burdened than households earning the median or higher. That said, there
is still substantial need at levels over 80 percent AMI, and these households are not eligible for subsidized
housing designated for households earning 80 percent AMI or less.

28 Comprehensive Housing Affordahility Strategy (CHAS) data, 2016-2020.

32



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Figure 18. Cost Burden by Income Level for Mashpee Households
Source: CHAS 2016-2020

100%
90%
80% —
70%
60%
50% - -
40% =]
30% i
20% h_ﬂE'_ ,
10% .W..
0%
Extremely Low Very Low Income Low Income Moderate Income Median Income or
Income > 30% to 50% > 50% to 80% > 80% to 100% Higher
Up to 30% HAMF! HAMFI HAMFI HAMFI > 100% HAMFI
® No Cost Burden m Cost Burdened 30% to < 50% m Severely Cost Burdened > 50%

Cost Burden and Household Types
Elderly family and small family households are the least likely to experience severe cost burden, with 8

and 9 percent of these household types severely cost-burdened, respectively. Large family and elderly non-
family LMI households are the most likely to experience severe cost burden, with an estimated 34 percent
of both household types severely cost burdened.?

Cost Burden and Tenure: Owners

An estimated 35 percent of homeowner households in Mashpee experience some degree of cost burden,
with 20 percent considered cost-burdened and 15 percent severely cost-burdened. Table 17 breaks cost
burden for owner households by income level, with the highest value in each cost-burdened category
emphasized in bold. While low- and extremely low-income owner households are the most likely to
experience cost burden, a significant amount of owner households earning over 80 percent of the HAMFI
are also unaffordably housed. These households would not be eligible for any current subsidized units in
Mashpee due to their income level, yet struggle with housing costs nonetheless.

29 Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) data, 2016-2020, Table 7

33



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan

2024-2029
Table 17. Income by Cost Burden (Owners Only)
Income Level = No Cost Burden EO; S;‘_j;g% ‘ Cos>t ? g;:len

Extremely Low income (Up to 30% HAMFI) 17% 15% 68%
Very Low Income (> 30-50% HAMFI) 23% 39% 38%
Low Income (>50-80% HAMFI) 51% 39% 10%
Moderate Income (>80-100% HAMFI) | 63% 29% ‘ 8%
Median Income or Higher (>100% HAMFI) 91% 8% | 1%
All Incomes 65% | 20% | 15%

go_urce: Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) data, 2016-2020

Cost Burden and Tenure: Renters
Mashpee renters are more likely to experience cost burden than homeowners, with an estimated 54

percent of renter households in Mashpee experiencing some degree of cost burden. Table 18 below breaks
cost burden for renter households by income level, with the highest value in each cost-burdened category
emphasized. The limitations of CHAS data become apparent in the table below, as the sample size shrinks
when looking at Mashpee’s limited number of renter households at specific income levels {e.g., an
estimated fifty-five renter households earning between 80 and 100 percent HAMFI). Nonetheless, there
are consistent trends across CHAS years — namely, renter households are more likely to experience cost
burden, and LMI renters are much more likely to be severely cost burdened than renters earning over 80
percent HAMF].*

Table 18. Income by Cost Burden (Renters Only)*

Income Level | No Cost Burden C:;;;‘_’;g;n ; COS: ::;: itk
Extremely Low Income (Up to 30% HAMFI) 15% 12% | 73%
Very Low Income (> 30-50% HAMFI) 16% 40% A44%
Low Income (>50-80% HAMF!) 359% 41% 24%
Moderate Income (>80-100% HAMF!) 100% 0% 0%
Median Income or Higher {>100% HAMFI) 97% 0% 3%
All Incomes ‘ 16% 18% 36%

“Source: Com;;rehensive Housing AffBrdability S trdtegy (CHI_L\S ) data, 201 6-2020
*Any 0- or 100-percent figure is unlikely due to margin of error and small sample size.

30 Based upon CHAS 2006-2010, 2011-2015, 2016-2020.

34



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

HOUSING AFFORDABILITY GAP
Another method for understanding housing affordability is the
L . Table 19. Maximum Single-Farmily

, which is the difference between a home’s Home Affordability Based on Area
purchase price or rent and what a household can afford. Based Median Income
on Mashpee’s current property tax rate and industry standards
for housing affordability, mortgage terms, insurance rates, and
other factors, households earning the HUD-defined Area
Median Family Income (HAMFI, $124,300) could not come close Max. Affordability at $399,040
to affording a single-family home in Mashpee at the current HAMFI ($124,300)
median sales price, as shown in Table 19.3' For renters, a
household renting a 2-bedroom unit at Mashpee’s estimated
median gross rent ($1,402) plus utilities should have a *Through October 2023. Sources:
household income of approximately $71,520 to avoid housing Banker & Tradesman Town Stats; 2023
cost burden, yet the estimated median household income of HAMFI (HUD); Barrett Planning Group
renter households in Mashpee is $47,854.3%3 This represents an
income gap of over $23,600.

2023 Mashpee SF $703,250
Median Sales Price*®

Affordability Gap $304,210

HOUSING INSTABILITY & HOMELESSNESS

Eviction Filings

MassLandlords, a member-based nonprofit organization, has compiled and published eviction filings by
community since October 2020. While these numbers are based on filings rather than outcomes, they still
provide insight as to the number of renter households potentially facing eviction in a given calendar year.
These records indicate 33 eviction filings within Mashpee in 2021, 39 in 2022, and 22 to date for 2023.%*

Foreclosures
Between 2007 and 2022, there were 393 foreclosure petitions filed on Mashpee households, representing
approximately 8 percent of the petitions county-wide during this time. Of these, 214 resulted in sale of

the foreclosed home, out of 2,625 for the county.®

31 Assumes 5 percent down payment; applies Mashpee’s FY2024 residential tax rate of 6.69 and current Freddie Mac weekly
average mortgage rate 7.29 percent (Nov 26 2023).

32 ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021, Table B25119. Utility allowance of $385 based upon u

33 Calculation assumes household does not spend more than 30 percent of income on rent and utilities (heat, electricity, hot
water; communication such as Internet and phone not included). Utility allowance of $385 determined by averaging figures from
Housing Assistance Corporation’s 2022 utility allowances for a 2-bedroom unit in a larger multifamily apartment. See utility
allowances for the region here: https://www.mass.gov/info-details/2023-regional-section-8-utility-allowances#housing-
assistance-corporation-(hac)

34 MassLandlords, Inc., “Massachusetts Evicion Data and Housing Court Statistics.” Accessed November 2023 at
https://masslandlords.net/policy/eviction-data/

35 MA Executive Office of Economic Development, “Foreclosure Trends Reports.” Accessed November 2023 at
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/foreclosure-trends-reports

35



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Chapter 40B Subsidized Housing Inventory

Also known as the Comprehensive Permit Law, Chapter 40B of Massachusetts General Law was enacted
to provide for a regionally fair distribution of affordable housing for people with low or moderate incomes.
Units created under Chapter 40B remain affordable over time because a deed restriction limits resale
prices and rents for many years, if not in perpetuity. The law establishes a statewide goal that at least 10
percent of the housing units in every municipality will be deed restricted affordable housing to ensure that
all communities meet the “regional fair share” of low- or moderate-income housing. Other options for
measuring “fair share” include a general land area minimum and an annual land disturbance standard.>®

Chapter 40B authorizes the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) to grant a comprehensive permit to pre-
qualified developers to build affordable housing.”” A comprehensive permit covers all the approvals
required under local bylaws and regulations, streamlining the application process. Under Chapter 40B, the
ZBA can waive local requirements and (a) approve, (b) conditionally approve, or (c) deny a comprehensive
permit; however, developers may appeal to the state Housing Appeals Committee (HAC) if their application
has been denied in a community that does not meet one of the three statutory determinants of “consistent
with local needs.” During its deliberations, the ZBA must balance the regional need for affordable housing
against valid local concerns such as public health and safety, environmental resources, traffic, or design.
Nonetheless, Chapter 40B tips the balance in favor of housing needs in towns that do not meet one the
three statutory tests. In addition, ZBAs cannot subject a comprehensive permit project to requirements
that “by right” developments do not have to meet.

The 10 percent statutory minimum is based on the total number of year-round housing units in the most
recent decennial census. In seasonal communities the number of year-round housing units is significantly
lower than the total housing unit count. In Mashpee the 10 percent minimum is currently 734 units and is
based upon the 2020 Census year-round housing count for Mashpee (7,342). At 5.16 percent, Mashpee
currently falls short of the 10 percent minimum; to meet that standard, the Town would need an additional
355 units based on its current SHI. The Town anticipates that one recently permitted project, LeClaire
Village, will add 39 units to the SHI during the life of this plan.

36 The general land area minimum applies if SHi-eligible units have been developed on sites comprising 1.5 percent or more of
the total land area zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial use; the annual land disturbance threshold applies if a
comprehensive permit application would lead to the construction of SHl-eligible units on sites comprising more than 0.3 percent
of the tota! land area zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial use or ten acres — whichever is greater — in one calendar
year.

37 A “pre-qualified developer” has obtained a “Project Eligibility” letter from a state housing agency.

36



Table 20. Current Subsidized Housing Inventory and Anticipated Future Units

Current SHI Units
Name

Homeyer

Breezy Acres

Foundations Project - Cape
Mashpee Village
Meetinghouse Hill

DDS Group Homes

Main Street Village

Habitat for Humanity
Habitat for Humanity
Habitat for Humanity
Habitat for Humanity
Habitat for Humanity

CCC HOR Program
Lakewood Drive/Foxhill Road
Asher’s Path

Cotuit Road

Timberlane Dr

Park Place Way

Russell Road

Habitat for Humanity
Habitat for Humanity
Great Cove Community
Habitat for Humanity
Mashpee Commons-Phase 1A
Habitat for Humanity
Habitat for Humanity

Anticipated Future Units
Name
LeClaire Village

Mashpee Commans,
Remaining Phase | Units

Location

Job'’s Fishing Road
Old Barnstable Road
300 Falmouth Road

|
|

i
i

t
|

1 Wampanoag Drive & Route 151

30 Meetinghouse Road
Confidential

334 Main Street

Sandy Fox Drive

Sandy Fox Drive
County Road

Dixon Drive

Dixon Drive

Great Neck Road North
Lakewood Drive/Foxhill Road
1 Carleton Drive

Cotuit Road
Timberlane Dr

Park Place Way

Russell Road

Ashers Path East
Quashnet Road

Breezy Way

Orchard Road and Quinaquisset Ave

22 Steeple Street
Great Neck Road
Degrass Road

Type

Rental
Rental
Rental
Rental
Ownership
Rental
Ownership

I Ownership

Ownership
Ownership
Ownership
Ownership
Ownership
Ownership
Rental

Ownership
Ownership
Ownership
Ownership
Ownership
Ownership
Rental

Ownership
Rental

Ownership
Ownership

Total SHI Current Units

Location

950 Falmouth Road

22 Steeple Street

H
'

I

Type

Rental

Rental

Total Additional Anticipated Units

Anticipated Total

i
i

Town of Mashpee

Units
24

145

=
w0 w

N B R R R R RO

5

[o)]

N

10

52

342

Units

39
127%

166
508

}
i

Housing Production Plan

2024-2029

Affordability
Expires

Perp
Perp
2037
2094
Perp
N/A
Perp
Perp
Perp
Perp
Perp
Perp
2024
Perp
Perp
Perp
Perp
Perp
Perp
Perp
Perp
2044
Perp
2045
Perp
Perp

Affordability
Expires

Perp

Unknown

:
i
|
i

40B Comprehensive
Permit?

Yes

: Yes

No

| No

Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
No
No
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
No

408
Comprehensive
Permit?

Yes

Yes

38 The original comprehensive permit for Mashpee Commons was for 382 units to be constructed in phases. Of these permitted
units, 179 were included under the original Phase I; thirty-two have been built under “Phase 1A” although 52 are currently

included on the SHI.

37



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

The following section discusses the most significant constraints that may affect Mashpee’s ability to
address affordable housing and year-round housing needs. In Housing Production Plans, terms such as
“barriers” or “constraints” are typically used as a value-neutral way to describe factors that objectively
limit housing development. While some “barriers” such as sensitive environmental areas or historic
resources can limit development, they are also valuable community assets — moreover, these barriers are
unlikely to change if under special protections. Other “barriers” can be remedied or improved upon,
particularly those stemming from local regulations and policies under the community’s direct control. This
analysis focuses on environmental, regulatory, and socio-political constraints to residential development.

Environmental Constraints

Information for this section is summarized from 2009 Open Space and Recreation Plan (OSRP), unless
otherwise noted.*

TOPOGRAPHY
Cape Cod is essentially a surficial geologic feature made up of sand and gravel, boulders, stones, and clays

carried from the north by glacial action that occurred 15-25,000 years ago. The outer portion of a massive
glacier became embedded with debris as it chipped away at mountains, valleys, and soils while traveling
southward. The glacier then deposited these irregularly shaped materials as it melted, creating many of
the visible geologic features that now make up Cape Cod. Fluctuations in the world's climate over the
thousands of years during which this glacial retreat occurred caused the rate of this process to ebb and
flow, quite literally shaping the terrain of the area by forming its notable moraines, kames, kettle holes,
and outwash plains.

Cape Cod’s were created by the flow of glacial meltwaters that resulted in a generally
flat, downward-sloping terrain. Outwash plains may include or be surrounded by irregular geologic
features including moraines, kames, and kettle holes. are hills of debris that originally filled holes
in the irregular surface of the unevenly melting glacier, resulting in uneven land surfaces as the lower ice
melted away and left the debris behind. In Mashpee, kames predominantly exist in the New Seabury and
Popponesset Beach area. were created when large blocks of slowly melting ice dislodged
and become surrounded by sands and gravel washed down by meltwaters. Eventually, these large blocks
of ice melted and left “kettle holes” in the ground. Such kettle holes are the primary reason for the
existence of Mashpee’s ponds and isolated freshwater wetlands; kettle ponds exist where the
groundwater rises higher than the bottom of the kettle hole. Over time, smaller kettle holes became filled
with organic materials, creating marshes, meadows, swamps, and bogs.

39 Town of Mashpee, Open Space & Recreation Plan, October 2008. Available at:
https://www.mashpeema.gov/planning-board/pages/open-space-conservation-recreation-plan.

38



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

SOILS
Glacial outwash consists of stratified sand and gravel deposited by a twisting network of glacial meltwater

streams, resulting in soils with very loose, wet lower layers. This makes up the largest portion of Mashpee’s
soil network and allows for a plentiful supply of water due to its permeability. Unfortunately, this quality
also makes these soils ineffective at filtering wastewater and can negatively impact water quality as a
result. While glacial outwash is the predominant soil type present in Mashpee, glacial till also appears in
the New Seabury/Popponesset Beach area. This soil type is an unsorted mixture of clay, silt, sand, gravel,
stones, and boulders deposited directly by the glacier (unlike outwash, which is deposited by the glacial
meltwater). Glacial till can present occasional problems for both septic systems and land development.

WATER RESOURCES

Groundwater

Like the whole of Cape Cod, Mashpee’s drinking water supply originates from groundwater via the Cape
Cod Aquifer, a sole source aquifer replenished by precipitation. Groundwater is also largely returned
through effluent from septic systems and sewage treatment plants, which highlights the importance of
hatural processes that effectively filter and clean groundwater. Highly permeable soils may limit the
effectiveness of this process — called natural attenuation — thereby resulting in poor water quality. The
Infrastructure Considerations and Regulatory Considerations sections of this plan discuss measures taken
at the local, state, and federal levels to counteract these challenges and protect groundwater quality.

Water & Wetlands

Wetlands include all areas where water covers the land either permanently or intermittently, or where
groundwater levels are so high that plant roots must live in water for most of their lives. The US Fish &
Wildlife Service categorizes wetlands into five basic systems: palustrine (freshwater vegetated wetlands),
lacustrine (larger ponds and lakes), riverine (rivers, streams, and their channels), estuarine (estuaries, salt
marshes, salt ponds, and beaches) and marine (the sea). Map 11, Natural & Built Environment, shows
Mashpee’s wetlands by type.

wetlands include its freshwater

Mashpee’s What are TMDLs?

marshes, bogs, wet meadows, swamps, floodplains along
rivers and streams, as well as small ponds under twenty
acres. The majority of these inland wetland areas exist due
to glacial activity that left behind kettle holes in the
ground. While larger kettle holes created Mashpee’s
lacustrine larger ponds, shallower kettle holes where the
bottom touches the groundwater table may form a bog or
swamp. Mashpee’s rivers are also surrounded by riparian
wetlands along their floodplains. Map 11 shows that these

wetlands  exist throughout Mashpee.
wetlands consist of lakes and larger freshwater
ponds. These are a major defining feature in the northern

palustrine

39

Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) indicate the
maximum amount that an identified pollutant can enter
a water body while maintaining surface water quality
standards. Under the federal Clean Waters Act (CWA),
each state must monitor and assess the quality of its
surface and groundwater and provide updates every two
years ta the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
Section 303(d) of the CWA outlines the process for
prioritizing water bodies for which establishment of
Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) is especially critical
due to water quality issues.

Source: MA DEP, Final Massachusetts Integrated List of Waters
for the Clean Water Act 2022 Reporting Cycle, Executive
Summary



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

half of Mashpee and include Ashumet Pond (which extends into Falmouth), Johns Pond, Mashpee-Wakeby
Pond, and Santuit Pond, all of which are used for recreational purposes. Wakeby Pond has established
TMDLs under the federal Clean Water Act (see textbox), while the Mashpee, Ashumet, and Santuit Ponds
have been identified as impaired waters requiring one or more TMDLs.*

Mashpee’s wetlands include its rivers, streams, runs, and brooks. Mashpee’s three largest rivers
— the Mashpee River, Santuit River, and Quashnet River — all flow into estuaries and eventually out to
sea. The Mashpee river runs from Mashpee Pond down to Popponesset Bay, while the Santuit River
eventually joins it, flowing from the Santuit Pond into the Shoestring Bay, a sub-embayment of
Popponesset Bay. On the other side of Mashpee, the Quashnet River and Childs River flow into saltwater
ponds of Falmouth before entering the Waquoit Bay. The Mashpee and Santuit Rivers have established
TMDLs under the federal Clean Water Act, while Popponesset Creek has been identified as an impaired

water requiring one or more TMDLs. wetlands include estuaries (the tidal mouth of a larger

river), saltwater marshes and ponds, beaches, and
embayments. These features generally consist of brackish
water resulting from freshwater flowing into saltwater.
Prominent examples in Mashpee include its embayments
-- notably Popponesset Bay and Waquoit Bay, the latter of
which includes Mashpee’s salt/brackish water ponds and
is considered an Area of Critical Environmental Concern.
Both the Popponesset and Waquoit Bays have
established TMDLs under the Clean Water Act.*!

What is an Area of Critical Environmental Concern?

Areas of Critical Planning Concern (ACEC) are recognized
because of the quality, uniqueness, and significance of
their natural and cultural resources. Communities
nominate ACECs at the local level for review and
designation by the Secretary of Environmental Affairs.
Once designated, ACECs receive additional oversight
through increased state permitting standards. The
Department of Conservation and Recreation (DCR)
oversees the ACEC program and operates closely with
the Office of Coastal Zone Management for ACECs in

coastal areas.

PROTECTED OPEN SPACE

Mashpee’s protected open space includes areas acquired
by conservation restrictions, trust and gifts, town purchases, tax takings, or set aside by cluster
subdivisions and other zoning mechanisms. Nearly 40 percent of Mashpee’s total land area is protected
open space under public or private ownership. According to the 2009 Open Space and Recreation Plan,
much of this acquisition was accomplished through the LAND program (formerly the Massachusetts Self-
Help Land Acquisition Program), the federal Land & Water Conservation Fund, The Trustees of
Reservations, The Nature Conservancy, the Trust for Public Land, the Orenda Wildlife Land Trust, the
Massachusetts Division of Fisheries and Wildlife, the Massachusetts Department of Conservation &
Recreation, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and other agencies and groups.* Map 11, Natural & Built
Environment, juxtaposes Mashpee’s protected open space with its building footprint.

40 MA Department of Environmental Protection, Final Massachusetts Integroted List of Waters for the Clean Water Act 2022
Reporting Cycle.

41 1bid.

42 Town of Mashpee, Open Space & Recreation Plan, October 2008, p. 2-1.

40



0 1.5

Map 11. Water Quality & Protection

Mashpee Housing Production Pian
Date: November 20, 2023
Data Sources: MassGIS, Town of Mashpee

This map Is for informational purposes and is not suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes.

iy

RARRIT]

|

Mashpee Wampanoag LAR E:] DEP-Approved Zone |

Water Body 1 X| DEP-Approved Zone Ii
=] Town Boundary [ | Interim Welthead Protection Area
{7 ] Groundwater Protection District [--"] ACEC - Waquoit Bay
Roads Impaired Waters
—— Limited Access Highway "~ TMDL Established
—— Highway, Not Limited Access Requiring TMDL
— Major Road

Minor Street or Road




BOURNE

LA
._“"'_'-,-«

Map 12. Natural & Built Resources

Mashpee Housing Production Plan
Date: November 20, 2023
Data Sources: MassGIS, Town of Mashpee

This map is for infarmational purposes and is not suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes.

[
BARRLIT

’ (ﬁ;? = ;;/ ;
N - Y ".".‘ )

2 "-SQAN'DWIqH“”%
Vit 4 0

AN =

Wampanoag LAR
D Town Boundary

Bl structures

Protected Open Space
[ Limited Protection
I Protected in Perpetuity

Roads National Wetlands Inventory
—— Limited Access Highway [ Lacustrine
——— Highway, Not Limited Access Palustrine
— Major Road Riverine
Minor Street or Road 5 Estuarine
- Marine



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan

2024-2029
Infrastructure Considerations
WATER AND WASTEWATER
Drinking Water

Drinking water in Mashpee originates from the Cape Cod Aquifer, a sole source aquifer replenished entirely
by precipitation. Drinking water comes through public wells owned and operated by the Mashpee Water
District, an independent municipal entity established by Chapter 136 of the Acts of 1987, as well as a
number of private wells owned and operated by individual homeowners and businesses. The Mashpee
Water District currently serves over 10,100 customers and operates seven wells.**** All seven wells, in
addition to three proposed sites owned by the Mashpee Water District, are classified by the Massachusetts
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) as wellhead protection areas (Zonel). A designation
applies to the protective radius required around public water supply well or wellfield, which is 400 feet for
drinking water wells with approved yields of over 100,000 gallons per day. In total, there are twenty-one
Zone | wellhead protection areas in Mashpee under various ownership.*® Zone | areas typically are
surrounded by a , a wellhead protection area that has been determined by hydro-geologic modeling
and approved by DEP’s Drinking Water Program. Zone lls indicate the area of an aquifer which contributes
water to a well under the most severe pumping and recharge conditions that can be realistically
anticipated (i.e., 180 days of pumping at approved yield with no recharge from precipitation). Any
contamination of groundwater in a Zone H could impact drinking water quality at the public well drawing
water from that area. If a Zone |l has not been established, an

acts as an additional protective radius, the size of which is based upon the pumping rate of the well in

gallons per minute.

Mashpee Water District’s water quality testing results for 2023 indicate no current violations for a variety
of contaminants.*® However, these results do not necessarily convey the quality of the groundwater within
Mashpee because they do not include drinking water on other public water supplies in Mashpee or in
homes on private wells. The Board of Health recommends that households on private wells have their
water tested annually and have test kits available for residents at cost.”’

Wastewater
In 2015, the Town completed the Final Recommended Plan and Environmental Impact Report for its sewer

planning process as part of the Town’s Comprehensive Wastewater Management Planning (CWMP)
process. This plan recommended a five-phase sewering process, and the Town expects Phase 1 to be

43 Mashpee Water District, 2022 Annual Report. Accessed December 2023 at
http://www.mashpeewaterdistrict.com/annualreport/2023/2022-water-rpt.pdf

44 Mashpee Water District, “About Us.” Accessed December 2023 at http://www.mashpeewaterdistrict.com/about/index.html
45 MassGlIS, data layer “MassDEP Wellhead Protection Areas (Zone II, Zone |, IWPA),” updated October 2023.

46 Mashpee Water District, 2023 Mashpee Water Quality Report. Accessed December 2023 at
http://www.mashpeewaterdistrict.com/waterquality/Mashpee%20Water%20Qual%20Rpt%201-16%20REV.pdf

47 Town of Mashpee Board of Health. “Well & Drinking Water FAQs.” Accessed December 2023 at
https://www.mashpeema.gov/board-health/fag/well-drinking-water-fags

43



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

iy

ARRELT

complete in 2024.% In May 2021, Mashpee adopted a Flow Neutral Bylaw to keep future wastewater flows
in alignment with the assumptions outlined in the CWMP. Establishing such a bylaw allows the Town to
seek zero percent financing through the Clean Water State Revolving Fund. To be eligible for this
opportunity, the state requires that communities establish land use controls to limit wastewater flows to
the amount authorized under zoning and wastewater regulations as of the date of the approval of the
CWMP.% Mashpee’s CWMP included buildout assumptions based upon current zoning and developable
land; thus, to remain eligible for future zero percent financing on eligible water pollution abatement
projects, any change in wastewater flow assumptions would require an update to the CWMP.

The Flow Neutral Bylaw allows new single-family residences to have four bedrooms by right on lots smaller
than 40,000 sq ft, and on lots over 40,000 sq ft, they may have one bedroom per 10,000 sq ft of lot area;
for multifamily residences, the bylaw allows one bedroom per 10,000 sq ft of lot area by right. Any requests
for additional bedrooms per 10,000 sq ft require a variance from the Board of Health if using on-site
sewage disposal systems (e.g., septic systems or package treatment plants), or a variance from the Sewer

Commission if on sewer.>

In addition to these local regulations, Title 5 of the State Environmental Code was recently updated to
identify Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Areas (NSAs), a designation now applied to most of Mashpee.
Under these revised state regulations, beginning in July 2024 any new construction in a Nitrogen Sensitive
Area (NSA) that is not sewered must be on the Best Available Nitrogen Reducing Technology (BANRT)
rather than a standard septic system. Current properties within an NSA must upgrade their existing septic
systems to the BANRT by July 7, 2025 unless the Town submits an application for a Watershed Permit,
which Mashpee is currently in the process of developing. Communities that apply for a Watershed Permit
are given until July 7, 2045 for properties with an existing septic system to upgrade.®?

TRANSPORTATION

Public Transit

The Cape Cod Regional Transit Authority (CCRTA) provides public transportation services for all fifteen
Cape Cod communities. Two lines have fixed stops in Mashpee -- the Sealine, which runs along Route 28
from the Hyannis Transportation Center to Woods Hole, and the Bourne Run, which travels hetween
Buzzards Bay Train Station to Mashpee Commons via Scenic Highway, County Road, Route 28A, and Route
151. CCRTA also offers ADA Paratransit service, a door-to-door shared ride transportation for passengers
whose disability prevents them from using accessible fixed route buses, and Dial-A-Ride Transportation
(DART), a low-cost door-to-door, appointment transportation service.>

48 Town of Mashpee, “Sewer Commission.” Accessed December 2023 at https://www.mashpeema.gov/sewer-commission

49 MGL c. 29C, Section 6(d){5)

50 General Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Updated as of May 1, 2023 Town Meeting. Chapter 108, Flow Neutral Regulation for
Present and Future Wastewater Treatment Systems/Sewer Service Areas

51 7ackary Seabury, Town of Mashpee Health Agent, email to Alexis Lanzillotta, Barrett Planning Group dated December 4, 2023.
52 Cape Cod Regional Transit Authority, “Schedules & Services.” Accessed Nov 2023 at:
https://capecodrta.org/schedules-services/

44



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Roadways
The Mashpee Rotary is a five-leg major transportation node at which Route 28, Route 151 (Nathan Ellis

Highway), Great Neck Road North, and Great Neck Road South intersect. The Massachusetts Department
of Transportation (MassDOT) owns and maintains the rotary and Route 28, while the Town of Mashpee
owns and maintains Route 151, Great Neck Road North, and Great Neck Road South. In 2020 the Town
completed its Complete Streets Prioritization Plan, which proposes nineteen roadway improvement
projects, two of which improve rotary conditions: (1) extending sidewalks on Great Neck Road South and
(2) a two-phase proposal to add bike and pedestrian accommodations to Route 151 between Old
Barnstable Road and the Falmouth town line. There are approximately 235 miles of roadway in Mashpee,
around 137 miles of which are privately owned.*?

Regulatory Considerations

Nearly 89 percent of Mashpee’s land area is zoned for residential use, Table 21. Mashpee Zoning

either as R-3 or R-5 (see Table 21). The most significant difference between Districts

these two districts is the minimum lot size — 80,000 sq ft for R-5 and 40,000 Sy % Area

sq ft for R-3. Like many communities on Cape Cod, Mashpee established D'St_mt - Zoned
larger minimum lot sizes to allow nitrogen from individual septic systems b S8.9%
to become sufficiently diluted.>* While large lot sizes limit development, R-3 40.2%
allowing additional housing types can provide a regulatory mechanism for i I Gt
increasing housing affordability and choice. However, detached single CiE G e 2%
family homes are the only allowed housing type in Mashpee other than ¢l sl
accessory apartments unless an applicant seeks approval under the Town’s &2 s
Open Space Incentive Development (OSID) by-law, a fairly restrictive bylaw - 0.5%
that requires a significant amount of land (20 acres) as a starting point.>>*° Industrial 8.6%
Thus, “missing middle” housing types including two-family homes, ) 8.6%
townhouses, and smaller apartment buildings cannot be built anywhere UG 100.0%

in Mashpee unless permitted under a particularly limiting bylaw.

What is “missing middle” housing?

Source: Town of Mashpee GI_S

“Missing middle” housing refers to a range of smaller multi-unit housing types — compatible in scale and form

with detached single-family homes — located in a walkable neighborhood.

Source: Missing Middle Housing: Thinking Big and Building Small to Respond to Today’s Housing Crisis, 2020

53 GIS data layers: MassGIS-MassDOT “EOTROADS” and Town of Mashpee GIS Department, “Private Roads”

54 OSRP 4-36

55 |n conjunction with the Town’s Commercial Center bylaw, bedrooms can be transferred from an OSID special permit to a

Commercial Center special permit.

56 Owner-occupied and breakfasts are also allowed by special permit in all districts except I-1.

45



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

LAND USE REGULATIONSS?
Article VI of Mashpee’s Zoning bylaws specifies allowable land uses by zoning district. As noted above,

residential uses other than detached single family and accessory apartments are limited to special permit
under the OSID bylaw.

Mashpee’s Table of Use regulations indicates whether particular land uses are allowed by right, allowed
by special permit, require site plan review, or are not allowed at all. Table 21 below indicates that most
residential uses are not allowed by right, although there are several “missing middle” uses allowed by
special permit under the OSID bylaw (indicated by an *).

Table 21. Select Residential Uses by District
'Y = Permitted Use, SP = Special Permit Use, - = Not allowed

Type of ResidentialUse R-3 R-5 Gl C2 GC3 I-1
DeEached single family Y Y - - - -
“Two-family or duplex dwelling SP  SP SP SP  SP  SP
*Attached dwellingor townhouse ~ SP SP SP SP SP  SP
*Mixed residential use - - SP SP SP SP
*Apartment building or garden apartments _ SP SP SP SP SP SP

Renting of not more than two rooms

Y
Accessory apartment Y Y - - - -

Manufa-ciured home park or subdivision - - - - - -
*Accessory dwelling SP SP SP SP SP Sp

Congregate care or assisted living facilities - - SP SP SP -

*Allowed only under OSID -
Source: Town of Mashpee Zoning Bylaw, Section 174-25: Table of Use Regulations

Article VI also includes the Town’s Growth Management bylaw (Section 174-26), which limits the annual
issuance of new residential building permits to:

e No more than more than 20 percent of the lots in a subdivision, Approval Not Required (ANR)
plan, or any other residential or mixed use development under a Special Permit

¢ No more than 90 dwelling units®®

This bylaw does not apply to affordable units that are deed-restricted to low- and moderate-income
households for at least twenty years, as well as: phased developments approved prior to May 11, 1987,
open space incentive developments approved under §174-46 of the Town’s Zoning Bylaws; senior (55+)
housing; or public housing developed by the Mashpee Housing Authority.

57 Zoning Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Updated as of May 1, 2023 Town Meeting. Article VI.
58 |n addition, no more than 10 percent of the allowed new dwelling units per year can be permitted within one calendar month.

46



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

1

BARRETT

LAND SPACE REQUIREMENTSS®?
Article VII of the zoning bylaw focuses on space and dimensional requirements. The minimum lot size in

all districts is approximately one acre, except for R-5 which is approximately 2 acres. At least 150 feet of
frontage is required in all districts, and the maximum building height is 35 feet in all districts.

Table 23. Area, Height, and Bulk Regulations

Min. Lot Size | Max. Coverage | Lot Frontage Building Setback to Lot Lines Height
District [(Square Feet)| of Lot Area (Feet) Front (Feet)| Side (Feet) | Rear (Feet) |(Stories/Feet)
R-3 40,000 20% 150 40 15 15 2.5/35
R-5 80,000 20% 150 40 25 25 2.5/35
C-1 40,000 25% 150 30 20 20 2/35
C-2 40,000 20% 200 100 30 30 2/35
C3 40,000 20% 200 100 30 30 2.5/35
-1 40,000 25% 200 100 30 30 2/35

Source: Town of Mashpee Zoning Bylaw, Section 174-31, Land Space Requirements Table

Exceptions to Area, Height, and Bulk Regulations

In 1993, the Town adopted the Popponesset Overly District (see Map X). Within this overlay,
building height cannot exceed 30 feet, and greater density is allowed through a smaller minimum
lot size (6,000 square feet), increased allowable lot coverage, and reduced frontage and setback

requirements.

The Mashpee Center Overlay District (MCOD) was adopted in 1999 to extend beyond the
underlying C-2 district. The MCOD allows a lower minimum front setback and the addition of a
maximum front setback. In addition, any structure within the MCOD that was built prior to 1945
and subsequently demolished may be rebuilt in or within fifty feet of its original location provided
its exterior design and appearance is essentially the same as the original structure.®

Within the Groundwater Protection District, maximum impervious surface coverage is reduced to
15 percent.

PARKINGS?
For both single family and multifamily homes, two parking spaces are required per residential unit.

Accessory apartments require an additional space. For mixed use, parking requirements are computed for

59 Zoning

Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Article VII.

80 A majority vote of the Planning Board at a public hearing is required to determine historical appropriateness of

the new

61 Zoning

proposed structure.
Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Article VIII

47



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

BARRE

each use, although the permitting authority can authorize a reduced number of spaces if data supports
that the proposed number of spaces is sufficient based upon similar projects.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS AND FLEXIBLE DEVELOPMENT?S2

Accessory Apartment §174-45.4
Accessory apartments, either attached or detached from the primary structure, are allowed in both

residential districts by right. Units require one designated parking spot, cannot exceed two bedrooms, and
— as of the most recent Annual Town Meeting in October 2023 — must be a minimum of 350 sq ft and a
maximum of 900 sq ft. Also in October 2023, Town Meeting approved an amendment to allow the property
owner to reside in the accessory apartment and rent the primary residence; previously the property owner
could only live in the primary residence. A third warrant article to require that accessory apartments be
rented for no fewer than twelve months (as opposed to current 30-day minimum) did not pass. The Town’s
OSID bylaw also allows for Accessory Dwellings (ADUs), which also may be attached or detached units and
are limited to two bedrooms, but do not have the same square footage limitations of the Accessory

Apartments.®

OSID §174-45.6
The Town’s Open Space Incentive Development (OSID) was established for the purposes of “preserving

critical open space and natural resource areas within the Town of Mashpee” and ”promoting an.efficient
pattern of land development.”® The OSID requires a minimum of twenty acres (although this can consist
of separate parcels as long as no developable parcel is smaller than five acres), and the developable
portion of an OSID project must have frontage along specified roads.5® In keeping with the purpose of the
bylaw, at least 50 percent of the upland area included within the OSID must be dedicated as permanently
protected open space and must include areas targeted for conservation.®® When determining the
allowable residential development within an OSID, the number of allowed bedrooms is calculated based
upon undeveloped land area. In addition, various “bonus multipliers” can provide for additional bedrooms,
with a requirement that at least ten percent of the bonus bedrooms be deed-restricted as affordable. Each
affordable additional bedroom developed allows for an additional “market rate” bedroom that can be built
upon completion of the deed-restricted bedroom.

OSID also acts as a “transfer of development” rights bylaw whereby the number of bedrooms that would
have been allowed in a parcel that instead is protected as open space beyond the base required can be

62 Zoning Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Article IX

83 The Accessory Dwelling provision under OSID may be superfluous now that the Accessory Apartment bylaw allows for detached
units as of 2019; prior to this, the Accessary Apartment bylaw only allowed attached apartments.

& Zoning Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Article IX, §174-46 Open Space Incentive Development (0sID)
85 Route 28, Route 151, Cotuit Road, Route 130, Great Neck Road North or South, Quinaquisset Avenue, Great Qak Road, Mashpee
Neck Road or Red Brook Road

8 Specifically, the targeted areas are those within a Primary or Secondary Conservation Area shown on the
Mashpee Open Space Incentive Plan, or within the authorized acquisition boundaries of the Mashpee National

Wildlife Refuge 174.46(C){1).

48

‘H[“Y?

T



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

transferred to coordinated mixed use projects on another parcel.®” While the OSID bylaw provides for a
variety of housing types not otherwise allowed under zoning and could potentially yield creative, vibrant
mixed use projects, it has not been effectively utilized since its adoption, perhaps due to its applicability
requirements and general complexity.

Cluster Development §174-45.7

Like OSID, the Town'’s Cluster Development bylaw encourages the preservation of open space through
more efficient use of land and municipal infrastructure. Perhaps the most powerful aspect of the Cluster
Development bylaw is that it prohibits traditional subdivisions on any parcel of five acres or more, instead
requiring that they be developed either under the Cluster Development or OSID bylaws unless the
Planning Board waives this requirement. Like OSID, the Cluster Development bylaw requires that a
minimum of 50 percent of the upland area be preserved as open space. Building lots must be grouped in
a cluster or clusters, with contiguous lots within each cluster. Open space also must be contiguous either
within the subdivision or to other existing or proposed open space. Overall density must match the
underlying zoning (either one or two acres per unit depending on zone), although there are provisions for
adding an additional lot for each standard lot size equivalent (either 40,000 sq ft or 80,000 sq ft) preserved
as open space beyond the base requirement, as well as for each lot reserved for the construction of a

deed-restricted affordable unit.®®

FLOODPLAIN ZONE OVERLAY?®9

As a participant in the Federal Flood Insurance Program, Mashpee is required to ensure that new
shorefront development meets engineering standards for flood proofing. To comply with this, Mashpee
established a Floodplain Zone Overlay (Article XI of the Town’s Zoning Bylaw), which corresponds to areas
identified as a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) in the Federal Flood Insurance Rate Map. An SFHA is an
area that will be inundated by the flood event having a 1-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in
any given year. While development in these areas is not outright prohibited, it is subject to additional
requirements and review by the Building Commissioner.

ZONING PROVISIONS FOR PROTECTION OF WATER QUALITY

In addition to the Town’s Flow Neutral Bylaw described previously, the Town has further regulatory
mechanisms within its zoning to protect water quality. These provisions include the Town’s Mashpee River
and Quashnet River Protective Districts, the Groundwater Protection District, and the Areas of Critical
Environmental Concern District — the latter of which is based upon a designation determined by the
state’s Secretary of Energy and Environmental Affairs.”® Map X displays these and other water protective
measures including DEP-desighated Zone i and Zone |l areas.

67 Either within a commercial or industrial district or within a Commercial Center as described in (§174-45.1) as a TOD.

68 One of every ten lots in a Cluster Development is required to be reserved for the construction of a deed-restricted affordable
unit.

69 Zoning Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Article Xl

70 The previous section on water quality describes additional state and federal measures.

49



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Mashpee River and Quashnet River Protective Districts™

The Mashpee River and Quashnet River Protective Districts apply to the marshes and uplands up to 100
horizontal feet from the natural bank of the Mashpee River and Quashnet River. While no new structures
other than docks are allowed, existing structures can remain and be repaired, maintained, or improved,

but cannot increase in size.

Groundwater Protection District”

Mashpee’s Groundwater Protection District largely coincides with DEP Zone [I-designated areas (see Map
X). Properties located within Mashpee’s Groundwater Protection District are restricted to one bedroom
for every 10,000 square feet. Lot coverage is reduced to 15 percent in the district, or 2,500 sq ft, whichever

is greater.

Areas of Critical Environmental Concern’3

The Waquoit Bay Areas of Critical Environmental Concern (ACEC) was designated by the Massachusetts
Executive Office of Environmental Affairs on November 26, 1979. The Town'’s bylaw adds an additional 25’
landward buffer to the ACEC and prohibits any new construction within the ACEC and buffer. Lawfully pre-
existing structures are able to continue, be repaired, maintained, improved, or enlarged as long as any
improvement or extension does not come more than 10 feet closer to open water or wetlands.

MASHPEE HISTORIC DISTRICT?4
[n 2007 Town Meeting voted to establish the of the Mashpee Historic District as authorized by MGL

Chapter 40C. The district runs along Main Street from the southern side of Mashpee Pond and extends
east to Cotuit Road. In the Historic District, any proposed changes to exterior architectural features visible
from a public way are reviewed by the Historic District Commission. There is no review of interior features
and variety of exterior features, including colors of residential buildings, are also exempt from review.

Socio-Political Considerations

Input gathered during this Housing Production Plan community engagement process indicated public
acknowledgement that the cost of housing is a barrier for the average household and that supply is a
growing issue for a range of income levels. However, making progress on these effarts will require strong
political leadership regarding housing issues and raising community awareness about the relationship
between housing and other issues facing the community.

71 Zoning Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Article XII

72 1bid., Article Xl

73 |bid., Article XIV

74 General Bylaws of the Town of Mashpee, Updated as of May 1, 2023 Town Meeting. Chapter 110, Historic Districts.

50



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Housing Production Plan Goals

State regulations and EOHLC Housing Production Plan Guidelines describe the required framework for the
goals of a Housing Production Plan, directing communities to include both qualitative and quantitative
goals based upon community and regional needs.” Qualitative goals should support a mix of housing types
that are affordable at a range of income levels and are developmentally feasible. In addition, plans must
include a quantitative goal for an annual increase in SHl-eligible housing units by at least 0.50 percent of
its year-round housing count. Communities that meet their annual goal can request a one-year
certification of compliance (often referred to as safe harbor) with EOHLC, and communities that reach a
1.0 percent target are eligible for a two-year certification of compliance. Achieving this “safe harbor”
threshold and receiving a one- or two-year certification allows communities to have a more flexible
approach to managing the comprehensive permit process, despite being below the overall 10 percent
target for SHI units.”®

To meet the threshold for one-year certification of this plan, Mashpee currently would need to produce
thirty-seven new SHi-eligible affordable housing units in a given calendar year based upon the 2020
Census year-round housing count, and seventy-four units for a two-year certification.

Table 24. Annual Housing Production Goal

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 | 5-Year Overall Goal
Total Year-Round Units (Census 2020) 7,342 7,342 7,342 7,342 7,342 7342
Target Annual SHI Units 37 37 37 37 37 184
Revised SHI Count 379 415 452 489 526 526
Revised SHI Percent 5.16% | 5.66% | 6.16% | 6.66% | 7.16% 7.16%
10% Requirement 734 734 734 734 734 734
Gap 355 319 282 245 209 209

In addition to the above numerical production goal, Mashpee’s Housing Production Plan includes goals
that encourage a mix of types of housing, consistent with community and regional needs that:

a) s affordable to househaolds to households at a range of income levels not more than 120 percent
AMI;

b) Provides for a range of vyear-round housing, including rental, homeownership, and other
occupancy arrangements, if any, for families, individuals, persons with special needs, and the

elderly; and

75 760 CMR 56.03(4)(c) and corresponding EOHLC Housing Production Plan Guidelines, October 2020

76 |f a community is certified compliant, decisions made by the Zoning Board of Appeals to deny a comprehensive permit will be
deemed “consistent with local needs” by the Housing Appeals Committee and will be upheld as a matter of law.



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

¢) Is feasible within the housing market in which they will be situated.”’

While goals and objectives both reflect desired outcomes, a goal is generally longer-term, broad, and
visionary, whereas an objective establishes a measurable target by which to assess progress toward the
broader goal. The five overarching goals below meet EOHLC’s HPP guidelines, identify the desired
outcomes of this plan, and support the current draft housing-related goals of the ongoing Town’s Local
Comprehensive Plan. The next section of this plan outlines specific strategies for achieving these goals and
objectives over the next five years.

Goal 1. Expand year-round housing options in Mashpee for a range of income levels and
household types, including singles and couples, families, multigenerational households,
veteran households, persons with disabilities, and older adults.

Objectives:

GOAL 2.

Increase the supply of affordable and market-rate rental housing for all types of households.
Facilitate additional ownership opportunities for low- to moderate-income households.

Integrate affordable housing into the existing fabric of the community through infill and the
redevelopment of underutilized properties.

Review and update Mashpee’s zoning and other housing regulations and policies to support
development that increases housing choice.

Leverage available state funds to support housing projects that meet a range of income needs
up to 120 percent AMI.

Continue to work toward the 10 percent statutory minimum for affordable housing by
achieving the annual production goal defined in this plan.

Prevent displacement of current Mashpee households and support housing

mobility for low- and middle-income households looking to move to Mashpee.

Objectives:

Preserve Mashpee’s existing supply of year-round market rate rental housing and modestly
priced market rate homes.

Monitor, track, and preserve Mashpee’s existing affordable units.

Ensure an adequate supply of housing that is affordable and accessible to older adults and
people with disabilities so they are able to age within the community.

77 Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities, “Housing Production Plan Section Il. B of ‘MG.L. c. 40B Comprehensive
Permit /Projects Subsidized Housing Inventory’,” October 2020, p3. Available at https://www.mass.gov/doc/housing-production-

plan-guidelines/download.

52



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

e Provide direct assistance to income-eligible households experiencing housing insecurity or

looking for a new home.
e Pursue and prioritize opportunities for Mashpee Wampanoag citizens to return home to

Mashpee or stay in Mashpee.

GOAL 3. Build local capacity to advance the housing goals, objectives, and strategies
included in this Housing Production Plan.

e Ensure regular collaboration between housing staff and other departments, Town bodies,
neighboring communities, regional entities, housing developers, and other relevant groups.

e Leverage available federal, state, and regional housing funds and resources.

e Build awareness of affordable housing needs within Mashpee and the larger region, as well as

ways the Town can address these issues.

GOAL 4. Ensure that sustainable and environmentally sensitive practices are integrated
into all housing development decisions.

e Protect water quality and ensure that growth does not degrade the Town'’s natural systems.

e Preserve undisturbed green spaces by channeling growth in and around areas that are already
developed.

e Prioritize compact, walkable, and pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods.

GOAL 5. Align development with the themes of the Town’s Local Comprehensive Plan and
other applicable local or regional plans.

e Build support for addressing housing needs through partnerships with groups and organizations
connected to the themes of the Local Comprehensive Plan, as amended.”®

e Provide adequate staff capacity and other resources for addressing the housing-related goals and
actions of the Local Comprehensive Plan.

e Thoughtfully address concerns about housing needs and environmental protection in unison when
setting policies that shape the long-term sustainability of the community.

78 The five themes of the draft LCP include: (1) protecting Mashpee’s unique natural and environmental resources; (2) addressing
housing, land use, and historic/cultural needs of existing and future Mashpee residents; (3) increasing the Town’s resilience and
ability to respond in a constantly changing environment; (4) promoting a diverse and appropriately scaled economic base to serve
the needs of Mashpee residents; and (5) strengthening and improving upon Town services, programs, and regulatory frameworks
to increase resident’s connection to the community and provide streamlined service to the public.

53



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Housing Production Plan Strategies

As described in the previous section, EOHLC encourages cities and towns to prepare, adopt, and
implement a Housing Production Plan that demonstrates an annual increase in Chapter 40B (SHi-eligible)
units equal to or greater than 0.50 percent of the community’s year-round housing units. However, as with
many communities, Mashpee’s housing challenges go well beyond the affordability needs that Chapter
40B intends to address. Nonetheless, while Mashpee has many housing challenges and barriers to
development, it also has options available to address them — namely, removing regulatory constraints to
housing production, providing adequate resources to support housing initiatives, establishing policies that
center housing as a community priority, and continuing to educate leaders and community members
about housing needs.

Mashpee has struggled to implement regulatory recommendations from the 2015 HPP, although the
Town'’s current Local Comprehensive Plan process has kept increasing housing diversity at the forefront of
planning discussions. Despite the challenges moving forward with land use polices that would encourage
housing production, the Town has made progress with other housing initiatives and made good use of
Community Preservation Act (CPA) funds. Table 25 lists all of the CPA-funded projects from the adoption
of the 2015 HPP to present.

Table 25. CPA-Funded Affordable Housing Projects Since 2015 HPP

Town Program Funds
Meeting

2016 Spring | Housing Assistance Program: To assist the Mashpee Housing Authority in | $330,000
the continuation of the Mashpee Housing Assistance Program for an
additional three-year period, a CPA award of $110,000 per year. Funds used
to provide direct assistance including short-term rental assistance, one-time
funds for first/last/security deposits, one-time emergency assistance for
rent, short term mortgage assistance, and down payment assistance for
first-time homebuyers.

2016 Fall Habitat for Humanity: To provide additional funds to support two Habitat | $30,000
for Humanity affordable housing ownership projects previously funded by
the CPC.

2018 Spring | Habitat for Humanity: To provide funds for three new Habitat for Humanity | $167,000
affordable housing ownership projects.

2019 Spring | Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust: To allow efficient acquisition and | $300,000
development of affordable housing projects in the Town of Mashpee.
Mashpee Housing Assistance Program: To enable continuation of the | $330,000
Mashpee Housing Assistance Program for an additional three-year period,




Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Table 25. CPA-Funded Affordable Housing Projects Since 2015 HPP

Town Program Funds
Meeting

a CPA award of $110,000 per year. Funds used to provide direct assistance
including short-term rental assistance, one-time funds for first/last/security
deposits, one-time emergency assistance for rent, short term mortgage
assistance, and down payment assistance for first-time homebuyers, in
addition to program administration costs.

2019 Fall 12 Cypress Circle Acquisition: To acquire vacant residential land at 12 | $100,000
Cypress Circle for affordable housing purposes in a well-established
subdivision.

2020 Spring | FORWARD: To assist FORWARD at the Rock to complete the enhancements | $40,000
of the affordable and supportive housing project in the Town of Dennis for
Cape Cod adults with Autism.

2022 Spring | Housing Production Plan: To update the Town’s Housing Production Plan | $50,000
(HPP) to consider demographic shifts, changes in population, and added
housing stock since 2010; and to provide a framework to meet the 10
percent mandate of housing eligible for inclusion on the State’s Subsidized
Housing Inventory.

Homeyer Village Roof Replacement: To preserve affordable housing for the | $168,084
senior population residing at the Frank J. Homeyer Village by providing
funding for a new roof.

Breezy Way Roofs, Siding, and Windows: To preserve affordable housing | $264,893
for low-income seniors and families through preservation of Breezy Way
units, including roof replacement, siding, and windows original to the 1990

building.

2023 Spring | Affordable Housing Trust: To allow efficient acquisition and development of | $550,000
affordable housing projects in the Town of Mashpee.
LeClaire Village: To assist the Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) and the | $500,000
Preservation of Affordable Housing (POAH) ta develop the 950 Falmouth
Road property to provide 39 new affordable rental homes, a total of 68-
bedroom units in three buildings.

TOTAL $2,829,977

These contributions have facilitated the development of forty-four affordable units (between Habitat for
Humanity’s five units and thirty-nine units at LeClaire Village), as well as the rehabilitation of forty Housing
Authority units. Looking forward, the Town is currently engaging in a neighborhood-level community
engagement effort relating to the potential development of a Town-owned parcel at 209 Old Barnstable
Road and a traffic study is underway at the time of this HPP.

55



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

1

BARRETT

Housing Production Plan regulations and guidelines direct communities to include specific strategies that

include:

e The identification of zoning districts or geographic areas in which the municipality proposes to
modify current regulations for the purposes of creating SHI Eligible Housing developments to meet
its housing production goal. (760 CMR 56.03 4(d)(1))

e The identification of specific sites for which the municipality will encourage the filing of
Comprehensive Permit applications. (760 CMR 56.03 4(d)(2))

e Characteristics of proposed residential or mixed-use developments that would be preferred by the
municipality.”® (760 CMR 56.03 4(d)(3))

e ldentification of municipally owned parcels for which the municipality commits to issue requests
for proposals (RFP) to develop SHI Eligible Housing, including information on appropriate use of
the site, and a timeline for the issuance of an RFP. ({760 CMR 56.03 4(d)(4))

e Participation in regional collaborations addressing housing development. Communities are
encouraged to contact the Regional Planning Agencies for insight into establishing regional
collaborations. (760 CMR 56.03 4(d)(1))

The strategies outlined in this plan fall into five overarching groups:

. strategies focus on the creation and
preservation of deed-restricted affordable units.

e Strategies promoting propase amendments to Mashpee’s land use
regulations to facilitate housing production and increase housing options.

. strategies suggest additional policies, regulations, and practices
that the Town can implement through interdepartmental collaboration, as well as local and
regional partherships.

e Strategies relating to TV suggest opportunities for increasing, enhancing, or better utilizing
resources for tackling housing initiatives.

® activities assist individuals and households, either directly or through
policies and actions that promote more equitable access to housing opportunities. While most of
these strategies fall outside of the state’s requirements for an HPP because they do not help to
increase the Town’s SHi-eligible housing stock, they nonetheless fill important needs identified by
the community — educating the broader community about housing needs, and allowing low- and
moderate-income households to remain in or move to Mashpee.

79 Characteristics placing special restrictions on the development of affordable housing, such as limiting size of affordable units,
limiting diversity in types of housing, or applying other zoning constraints, will not be approved. In addition, affordable housing
plans must comply with all state and federal fair housing laws.

56



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

The strategies of this HPP dovetail well with EOHLC’s requirements, as shown in Table X.X, which outlines
the relationship between these two organizational frameworks. HPPs can include strategies based on local
housing needs that do not relate to the overall goal of moving toward the 10 percent statutory minimum;
such strategies are included in the “Other” column of Table 26.

Note: Following the December meeting with the Select Board and Planning Board, we will provide
additional narrative for each strategy that moves forward, including examples from other communities
and other details where applicable.

Affordable Housing Development

1. Make good use of Chapter 40B as a vehicle for creating affordable housing by:

1a. Collaborating with Mashpee Commons to plan for the continued implementation of Phase | of
their comprehensive permit and future plans for additional project phases

1b. Issuing and promoting a standing RFP for acquisition of property specifically for the purpose
of creating affordable housing, prioritizing properties suitable for “friendly 40B” Local Initiative

Program (LIP) projects.®

1c. Preparing local LIP guidelines to promote the program and outline the Town’s priorities for LIP
projects. This may include preferred financing structure for the project (e.g., a preference for use
of specific subsidy programs), local preference policy, marketing preferences, design
considerations, and more. [The town should take caution that higher design or environmental
standards are not limited to affordable housing projects and would be equally applied to new
market rate projects of similar size and scope.]

1d. Providing 40B training and technical assistance to Town staff and members of appropriate
Town bodies to ensure smooth and efficient comprehensive permit approval processes.®

2. Continue the current process for exploring siting affordable housing on 209 Barnstable Road and
then conduct similar processes for developing “friendly 40B” LIP projects on other identified Town-
owned properties such as the VFW site on Rt. 28.%

3. Explore the creation of a nonprofit Community Land Trust (CLT) through a land donation or funding
to facilitate more affordable homeownership opportunities.

80 If the AHT had enough funds available, the RFP could indicate that Trust funds would be used to purchase such a property, thus
eliminating the need for a Town Meeting appropriation. Otherwise, Town Meeting would need to appropriate funds for this
purpose.

81 While the ZBA is the Town body responsible for reviewing comprehensive permit applications, the Select Board would be a
leading partner in developing a LIP application and could also benefit from this training.

82 Supports Draft LCP Policy H-2

57



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

4. Require the inclusion of affordable units in all new residential development and redevelopment.®
Explore bonuses (e.g., additional lots or units, increased height, decreased parking) for projects
including accessible units or a greater number of affordable units than is required.®

5. Develop regulations to allow small affordable units on lots that are otherwise unbuildable under
z0ning, provided the Town’s wastewater policies can be met.**

6. Explore opportunities for preserving existing modestly priced housing stock and creating deed-
restricted affordable units through a rehabilitation program, buying down units upon resale, and

other options.

Zoning for Housing Choice

Note: Zoning changes do not eliminate the need for compliance with Board of Health or Sewer Commission
regulations. Suggested amendments assume consideration of the Town’s CWMP as amended.

7. Explore zoning mechanisms for increasing options for housing choice outside of the Town’s current
Open Space Incentive Development bylaw.® Potential options to consider include:

e Establishing overlay districts in areas with suitable infrastructure (or planned infrastructure)
that would allow townhouses or multifamily buildings

e Establishing a form-based code overlay district in areas with suitable infrastructure (or
planned infrastructure)

e Allowing conversion of existing single-family homes to small multifamily homes by special

permit
e Allowing two-family homes by right in residential districts

e Amending the Town’s Cluster Development bylaw to allow additional residential uses beyond
what is allowed in the underlying zoning

e Striking the bylaw altogether and building new bylaws that retain the elements the Town wises

to preserve

83 Supports Draft LCP Action H-4
84 Supports Draft LCP Action H-10

8 Also encourages infill. Assessor’s records count 371 “undevelopable” residential lots. This designation is typically used for
parcels that do not meet lot size or frontage requirements as opposed to indicating an environmental constraint. These parcels
appear to be scattered throughout Town. If staff capacity allows, the Town could inventory these lots and assess their suitahility
for housing depending on their degree of nonconformity, neighborhood context, environmental concerns, and other

considerations.
86 Supports Draft LCP Action H-3, Action H-5, and LU-10

58



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

8. Conduct an analysis of buildable residential land and consider reducing dimensional requirements
in appropriate areas to better match the surrounding density on the ground.®’

9. Encourage infill through the redevelopment of underutilized commercial properties to allow
mixed use development that meets design standards and includes affordable and mixed income

housing.5®

10. Consider reducing parking requirements, particularly for multifamily development, to reduce
impervious surface and lower development costs.

Planning & Collaboration

11. Monitor legal updates, including status of pending home rule petitions from other communities,
other housing-related legislation, and case law pertaining to housing; share updates with
Barnstable County HOME Consortium representatives during monthly meetings.

12. Track permitting for new Accessory Apartments in relation to the number of registered short-term
rentals in Mashpee and consider regulatory updates as needed. If warranted, consider
strengthening the Town’s existing Rental Bylaw, as authorized by MGL c. 64C Section 14, to
regulate short-term rentals within the general bylaws.®*

13. In collaboration with other Town departments, establish criteria to evaluate properties for
residential development or redevelopment potential; use this criteria to inventory and evaluate
publicly- and privately-owned land for siting future affordable housing projects.®

14. In collaboration with the Conservation, Natural Resources, and Health Departments, conduct an
audit of the Open Space Incentive Development Zoning Bylaw (OSID) and consider an overhaul
based on established successful practices in other communities.”* Such changes may include but

are not limited to:

e Establishing a separate transfer of development rights bylaw outside of the OSID bylaw
e Merging and enhancing the OSID and Conservation Cluster bylaws
e Reducing minimum acreage requirement under OSID

e Simplifying bonus calculation methodaology under OSID

87 The current Popponesset Overlay District, which allows a minimum lot size of 6,000 square feet, is an existing example of an
overlay with different dimensional requirements than the underlying district.
88 Supports Draft LCP Action H-15

89 Under MGL ¢. 64C, Section 14(i), communities can establish a bylaw or ordinance to “regulate the existence or location of [short
term rental] operators under this section within the city or town, including regulating the class of operators and number of local
licenses or permits issued to operators under this section and the number of days a person may operate and rent out an
accommodation in a calendar year” Mashpee already has an existing Rental Property bylaw (§106-8) adopted in 2019.

90 Such criteria can be used either for evaluating current town-owned property or when considering an acquisition opportunity.

91 Supports LCP Action LU-3

59



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

e Removing the Accessory Dwelling provision to reduce confusion with the Accessory
Apartment bylaw

15. Collaborate with Chamber of Commerce on strategies for increasing the supply of year-round
affordable housing as well as housing options for the seasonal workforce.*?

16. Meet with the Mashpee Wampanoag Housing Commission at least twice per year to discuss
housing initiatives and projects, tribal housing needs, and opportunities for collaboration.®

17. Conduct quarterly or semiannual joint meetings of the Affordable Housing Committee, Affordable
Housing Trust, Planning Board, and Community Preservation Committee to discuss
implementation of this HPP. (Alternative: appoint a liaison from the AHC to attend other
board/committee meetings quarterly to provide status updates.)*

18. Develop a joint 3-5 year strategic plan for the Affordable Housing Trust and Affordable Housing
Committee and consider including strategies for restructuring the Trust membership.

19. Consider establishing a policy to set aside additional CPA funds (beyond the 10 percent required
for affordable housing) as standard practice so the AHT has funds available to act efficiently on

opportunities for acquisition.®

20. Work with neighboring communities by pooling CPA funds and other revenue to construct
affordable housing to meet regional housing needs.

21. Remain up to date on EOHLC funding opportunities, including those potentially made available
through the Affordable Homes Act filed in October 2023, and engage with developers to negotiate
projects that meet a variety of needs provided by different subsidy sources.*

22. Evaluate and consider strategies for establishing funding streams to support housing opportunities
for households earning over 100% AMI, possibly through Home Rule Petition.

23. Increase staff capacity within the Planning Department to support housing initiatives, including
the implementation of this Housing Production Plan.?” %8

92 While not directly applicable to the purposes of an HPP, the competition for limited supply of housing could be lessened with a
plan for creating housing opportunities for seasonal workers.

93 Suppaorts Draft LCP Policy H-13
%4 Sypports Draft LCP Action H-8

95 Supports Draft LCP Action H-6

% E.g., pending Affordable Homes Act includes new funding apportunities for mixed income housing as well as additional funding
for existing subsidies such as the Facilities Consolidation Fund (provides Dept of Mental Health set-aside units) and Housing
Innovations Fund (supports creation of housing for vulnerable populations such as formerly homeless persons).

97 CPA funds can be utilized to fund a Housing Coordinator or similar position.
98 Supports Draft LCP Action H-11

60



Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

24. Provide education and training for Town staff and members of relevant boards, committees, and
commissions through organizations and programs including the Citizen Planner Training
Collaborative (CPTC), Massachusetts Housing Partnership’s Housing Institute, the Citizens’ Housing
and Planning Association (CHAPA), Harvard Joint Center for Housing Studies, or the Urban Land

Institute (ULI).

Education, Advocacy, and Support

25. Direct developers of affordable housing projects to include provisions within their Affirmative Fair
Housing Marketing Plans (AFHMPs) to ensure that Wampanoag tribal members are made aware
of the application opportunity and that application sessions are offered on tribal land if requested
by the Housing Commission.

26. Continue to pursue a policy for future affordable housing projects that allows for a number of units
set aside for members of the Wampanoag tribe.*®

27. Encourage creation of accessory apartments by holding educational events to inform property
owners of permitting process and any available financing opportunities.*® Consider offering a tax
abatement or providing small forgivable loans to property owners who construct an accessory
apartment for year-round occupancy.*®

28. Explore mechanisms for re-establishing housing assistance programs to address housing instability
and prevent homelessness. Programs to consider include but are not limited to a first-time
homebuyer down payment program, rental assistance, or assistance with first/last/security, either
as Town-sponsored programs or in collaboration with regional partners.*®

29. Launch a community education program regarding Mashpee’s housing needs, possibly in
partnership with the Inclusion and Diversity Committee and Human Services Commitee; include
other communities and organizations where possible to encourage regional conversation.

92 Supports Draft LCP Action H-18
100 Sypports Draft LCP Action H-12
101 Supports Draft LCP Action H-14
102 Sypports Draft LCP Policy H-10

61



A

62-G7 saigarens

87 ‘97 'Sg seiSeiens A 67 ASaiedis A L7 A8arenis o yoddng pue
‘Aseaonpy ‘uouesnp3
P - vZ-61 SeIgelens
€7 ‘7T ‘6T sa1darens o ¥¢ 1T ‘0¢ AS=rens o Apeder
|
|
[
8T-1T s2I8a1e4S
8T ‘2T sa18e1en1S A 9T ‘qT ‘1T seldsrens A 21 A8sjens o €1 Adajens A T A8ajesis A uopeloqejjod
pue Sujuueijd
0T-/ se18aens
0T pue g sa|dajens A 6 A8;jens A £ ABs1ens p oY)
Suisnoy Joj Sujuoz
9-T sa1891en$
uolleAlasald
et f >M -7
9 ASsjens A pT ASeens o 7 ASajens p A A3jens p qt ‘e1 s3i8siens f S Aselens f pue awdojzraq
SuisnoH ajqepiopy
*(-239 “Suisnoy *|eo8 uoponpoad
aadysopy 01 Aleuoisnppul ‘quawdojanap Suisnoy sy jP”W 0}
NOW J0 uf Ulbwal 0} buybbnis ash-paxiw ‘Buisnoy sjuswdojsnap Suisnoy
spjoyasnoy Jof Laddns pajuaiio-jisues) ‘asn a|qi8y3 |HS Sunesss

so jam so Auopdpa Buipnpur

*Buisnoy 9jq1813 |HS

-aJ aandepe ‘sjuswdojanap

jo sasodund ay3

spaau buisnoy Buisixa ssaippo dojansp 01 sjesodoid | yaasnp  apnpul  WSiw ‘suopesjjdde Jjwiad | 1o} suonelnSas juaind
ssajayrauou Aayy ‘suun 3jqibya 10} sisanbas anssi 03 | sapdwexa) Ayedpiunw anisuayasdwo) | Ajjpow o) sasodotd
-JHs fo uononpoud ssaippo wawdojansp | spwwiod  Ayjedijunw | Yy Ag  pasisjeid  aq | jo SujyayiaBeanosud | Ajjedpiunw ayl yolym wLwaimbay
10U Op A3Y31 3snpo3q yiomawipif | Suisnoy Suissaappe | ay1 yoiym Joj spPosed | pinom jeyy syuawdolsasp | jim Ayjedpiunw ayy | ul  sease  dydesSoaB Aloje|n3ay
Aiopinbas  3yr Jo apisino SuoieIoge}jod | paumo Ajledpunw | asn-paxiu 10 |BRUIPISAI | YOIYM IOy SIS ayPads | 1o spuisip Buluoz | ueld uonnpold
fief  saibaipais  asayl ajym | |euordss ul uonedpyried | jo uoyesyyuap] | pesodoud jo sousyaloeiey) | Jo uopedynuapl ayl | Jo  uonesynuapl 3yl | Suisnoy adHa
BPy0 (s)p)v ()Pl {e)p)r ()Pl (31(377 £0°95 HIND 092
TA 14V €207 ‘6 323Q
620¢-170T

uejd uonANpold SuisnoH

sadysen Jo umo|



63

Town of Mashpee
Housing Production Plan
2024-2029

Dec 9, 2023 DRAFT v2



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES 1

AGENDA
SELECT BOARD
MONDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2023
WAQUOIT MEETING ROOM
MASHPEE TOWN HALL
16 GREAT NECK ROAD NORTH
MASHPEE, MA 02649

*Broadcast Live on Local Cable Channel 8*
Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee Website: https://www.mashpeema.qgov/channel-8

6 p.m. — Convene Joint Meeting with the Affordable Housing Trust in Open Session

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
MOMENT OF SILENCE
Affordable Housing Trust:
- Discussion and Approval of Expending an Additional Seven Thousand Dollars ($7,000) for the Acquisition of 12
Cypress Circle
- Discussion and Approval of an Appraisal and Possible Acquisition of 46 Main Street
Adjourn Joint Meeting with the Affordable Housing Trust

MINUTES
Discussion and Approval of the Following Minutes:
Monday, November 13, 2023 Regular Session; Monday, November 20, 2023 Regular & Executive Sessions
APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS
» Department of Public Works Director Catherine Laurent:
Discussion and Approval of the Following:
- Award of Contract for Calendar Year 2024 Disposal of Municipal Solid Waste: Gotta Do Contracting, LLC
- Award of Annual Contracts for:
Trash/Recycling Container Services: Cavossa Disposal Corp.; Rental of Portable Toilets: Pina Sajje Sanitation
- Discussion and Approval of Acceptance of Plans for Old Brickyard Road and Ninigret Avenue
- Stormwater Management Update
> Discussion and Approval of the 2024 Seasonal Population Estimate: Town Planner Evan Lehrer
» Discussion and Approval Participation in the Public Health Excellence Grant Program for Shared Services:
Health Agent Zachary Seabury
> 6:45 pm Public Hearing — Annual Alcoholic Beverages & Entertainment Licenses
» Discussion and Approval of Annual Alcoholic Beverages & Entertainment Licenses
» 6:50 pm Public Hearing — New KENO License Application: Cape Cod Coffee, Inc. 10 Evergreen Circle, Mashpee,
MA.: Jan Aggerbeck
» Discussion and Approval of KENO License Application: Cape Cod Coffee, Inc. 10 Evergreen Circle, Mashpee, MA.
> Public Comment
COMMUNICATIONS & CORRESPONDENCE
NEW BUSINESS
> Interviews, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Following Appointment:
- Mashpee-Wakeby Lake Management Committee (Term Expires June 30, 2024 ): Allison Bernhardt
ADDITIONAL TOPICS
(This space is reserved for topics that the Chair did not reasonably anticipate would be discussed)
LIAISON REPORTS
WATER QUALITY UPDATES
TOWN MANAGER UPDATES
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT




*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES

Mashpee Select Board-Affordable Housing Trust

Minutes
December 4, 2023
Present: Selectman John J. Cotton, Selectman Thomas F. O’Hara, Selectman Carol A. Sherman,

Selectman David W. Weeden (remote participation), Selectman Michaela A. Wyman-Colombo
Town Manager Rodney C. Collins
Assistant Town Manager Wayne E. Taylor

Attendees:  Allan Isbitz (remote participation), Richard Klein, Gregory McKelvey, Rick Cayer

Meeting Called to Order by Chairman Cotton at 6:00 p.m.
Mashpee Town Hall, Waquoit Meeting Room

The Affordable Housing Trust met with Evan Lehrer, Community Development Coordinator to review the
following matters;

Discussion and Approval of Expending an Additional Seven Thousand Dollars ($7.000) for the Acquisition of
12 Cvpress Circle:

Community Preservation Act funds in the amount of $100,000 approved and transferred by a vote of Town
Meeting in 2019 to the Affordable Housing Trust to purchase property identified as 12 Cypress Circle for
affordable housing purposes was discussed.

It was realized thereafter the subject property had clouded title issues. The owner was noted to

have worked diligently to resolve the issues securing full title insurance and a clear deed of

reference. The risk associated to this parcel has now substantially diminished, and based on Town Counsel’s
opinion, the sale of 12 Cypress Circle can proceed.

The owner has requested the Trust consider authorizing an additional $7,000 towards the
purchase since the time has lapsed and expenses have occurred to secure full title.

In 2019 an appraisal of real property value was determined at $110,000 for the purchase of 12 Cypress Circle,
a site comprised of 1.2 acres.

Mr. Lehrer indicated the property has frontage on two streets; Cypress Circle and Fox Hill Road,
both of which require improvements to be eligible for building permits. It is a former Recreation
and Green Space lot.

Discussion followed with respect to the affordable housing potential. It was noted that prior, two
letters of interest were received from the Housing Assistance Corporation and from Habitat for Humanity of
Cape Cod. Additional Habitat for Humanity homes are noted to be constructed in this subdivision.

Mr. Lehrer indicated he would work with the Affordable Housing Trust and Affordable Housing
Committee to make the decision on the site. Criteria would be imposed in the Request for
Proposal, and based on Title V restrictions.



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES

Mashpee Select Board-Affordable Housing Trust
Minutes
December 4, 2023

Discussion and Approval of Expending an Additional Seven Thousand Dollars ($7.000) for the Acquisition of
12 Cypress Circle: (continued)

Motion made by Mr. McKelvey to authorize the additional expenditure of $7,000 from the
Affordable Housing Trust reserves to purchase 12 Cypress Circle, Mashpee for a total
price of $107,000; property is identified on Assessor’s Map as Map 21, Block 33, and direct
Town Counsel to re-engage with the property owners’ counsel to convey the property.
Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

YOTE: 9-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:

Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes

Mr. Isbitz, yes Mr. McKelvey, yes Mr. Klein, yes

Mr. Cayer, yes Opposed, none

The property is subject to a restrictive covenant that was released by vote of the Planning Board
on the condition it be conveyed to the Town for affordable housing purposes.

Discussion and Approval of an Appraisal and Possible Acquisition of 46 Main Street:

Evan Lehrer, Community Development Director presented a new opportunity for affordable
housing located at 46 Main Street, Mashpee. The site, an undersized 45,000 square foot lot is
currently a vacant parcel.

The site is in excess of 1 acre similar to the scale of 12 Cypress Circle. The land is not in
a nitrogen sensitive area, and it is suitable for an affordable housing opportunity.

The owner has indicated a desire to offer the property for sale to the Affordable Housing Trust
for the purpose of affordable housing. Mr. Lehrer recommended the Trust move forward to
authorize an appraisal to facilitate negotiations with the property owner.

It was suggested the property be examined to ensure there is no contaminant on site.

Mr. Lehrer was acknowledged with high regard for his due diligence in recognizing and
presenting development opportunities for much needed affordable housing.

Motion made by Mr. McKelvey to authorize a Real Estate Appraisal for 46 Main Street,
Mashpee for a sum not to exceed $5,000.

Motion seconded by Mr. Klein.

VOTE: 9-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:

Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes

Mr. Isbitz, yes Mr. McKelvey, yes Mr. Klein, yes

Mr. Cayer, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES

Mashpee Select Board-Affordable Housing Trust
Minutes
December 4, 2023

ADJOURNMENT

The next scheduled meeting of the Affordable Housing Trust will be held in January 2024,
With the onset of the Housing Production Plan Mr. Lehrer recommended the Trust meet on a
quarterly basis to review the plan. In addition, it was recommended that a 5-year plan be
developed for Town-owned properties, to include moving projects forward, required actions,
town meeting approvals, and potential build-out scenario’s.

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to adjourn the Affordable Housing Trust meeting at
6:40 p.m.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VYOTE: 9-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:

Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes

Mr. Isbitz, yes Mr. McKelvey, yes Mr. Klein, yes

Mr. Cayer, yes Opposed, none

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen M. Soares
AHT! Secretary



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES

Mashpee Select Board
Minutes
December 4, 2023

The Select Board meeting convened at 6:41 p.m.
MINUTES

Monday, November 13. 2023 Regular Session:
Monday. November 20, 2023 Regular & Executive Sessions:

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to approve the minutes of Monday, November 13, 2023 Regular
Session and the minutes of Monday; November 20, 2023 Regular & Executive Session as presented.
Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo.

VOTE: 4-0-1. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, abstained Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

Department of Public Works Director Catherine Laurent:
Discussion and Approval of the Following:

Award of Contract for Calendar Year 2024 Disposal of Municipal Solid Waste: Gotta Do Contractine. LLC:

Catherine Laurent, Director of Public Works was in attendance to recommend the Select Board approve the
contract with Gotta Do Contracting LLC, for an additional year. The calendar year contract would expire on
December 31, 2024.

In an effort to obtain better long-term rates for disposal, the Town will be seeking options with the Upper Cape
Regional Transfer Station.

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to award a contract with Gotta Do Contracting, LLC for Calendar
Year 2024 as recommended.
Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo.
VYOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.
Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES 6

Mashpee Select Board

Minutes
December 4, 2023

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

Award of Annual Contracts for:
Trash/Recycling Container Services: Cavossa Disposal Corp.: Rental of Portable Toilets: Pina Sajje Sanitation:

It is recommended the Town move forward with annual contracts for Trash/Recycling Services and the Rental
of Portable Toilets. This is the second year of a two-year bid. Current contracts are due to expire on December
31, 2023.

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to approve the recommendation of the DPW Director and award
the annual contracts for Trash/Recycling to Cavossa Disposal Corp, and the Rental of Portable Toilets to
Pina Sajje Sanitation for 2024.

Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo.

VOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

Discussion and Approval of Acceptance of Plans for Old Brickvard Road and Ninigret Avenue:

After learning the layout plans for Ninigret Avenue and Old Brickyard Road were not formally accepted, it was
recommended the Select Board move to accept the roadway layouts. In accordance with the directive from
Town Counsel, the Town has new plans prepared for the recording at the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds.

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to move that the Select Board approve and ratify its acceptance of
the roadway layouts for Ninigret Avenue and Old Brickyard Road, as accepted by vote of the Town
Meeting pursuant to Article 29 of the March 5, 1962 Annual Town Meeting Warrant, as shown on the set
of plans entitled Road Taking Plan Ninigret Avenue in Mashpee, Massachusetts and Road Taking Plan
Old Brickvard Road in Mashpee, Massachusetts, both dated November 9, 2023, prepared by Cape and
Islands Engineering, Inc.; it being the intent of this vote to delineate as a matter of public record the
boundaries and measurements of the layouts of said Town ways as previously accepted and as they have
been in continuous existence and public use for the past sixty years.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

Stormwater Management Update:

Due to an unforeseen illness, the Town’s stormwater consultant of Tighe & Bond will be making a presentation
on the Town’s Stormwater Asset Management Plan (AMP) at the Select Board’s first meeting in January.



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES 7

Mashpee Select Board
Minutes
December 4, 2023

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

Discussion and Approval of the 2024 Seasonal Population Estimate: Town Planner Evan Lehrer:

Evan Lehrer, Community Development Director was in attendance to reveal the estimated peak population of
36,922 persons for the 2024 summer season, as of July 10, 2024. This is made known for the purpose of setting
the quota for liquor licenses in the Town of Mashpee and it is a requirement of the Alcoholic Beverages Control
Commission (ABCC).

Mr. Lehrer indicated calendar year 2023 was slower in terms of growth with only 28 single family dwellings
added to the housing stock. In addition, 7 accessory apartments were constructed.

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to approve the 2024 Seasonal Population Estimate of 36,922 persons
as of July 10, 2024.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VYOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

Discussion and Approval Participation in the Public Health Excellence Grant Program for Shared Services:
Health Agent Zachary Seabury:

Zachary Seabury, Board of Health Agent was in attendance with Katie O’Neill from the Barnstable County
Board of Health and Environment to review the Public Health Shared Services program grant. The MDPH-
Public Health Excellence (PHE) grant assists local boards of health by utilizing cross-jurisdictional services or
shared services for a more effective and efficient local public health system.

Local boards of health can improve compliance with statutory and regulatory mandates and expand the
protections and opportunities offered to residents with this grant opportunity by pooling resources, functions
and expertise.

The PHE grant has been awarded for $481,594 annually for three-years with an opportunity for renewal three
times. Funds can be used for staff salaries, staff training, benefits, payroll taxes, travel, program supplies and
consultants.

There is no fiscal responsibility to take part in the grant or in governance board meetings. Each participating
town authorizes a representative to work with the shared services coordinator. Each town has one vote in the
development of priorities and public health initiatives for the region and subregions.

Ms. O’Neill indicated that they are hiring new inspectors to support existing staff in an effort to accomplish
more together rather than individually. For example, if the workload is high, health services would be provided
as a team. To date, 320 communities have signed on to take part in the PHE grant program.



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES 8

Mashpee Select Board
Minutes
December 4, 2023

Discussion and Approval Participation in the Public Health Excellence Grant Program for Shared Services:
Health Agent Zachary Seabury: (continued)

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to designate Board of Health Agent Zachary Seabury as Mashpee’s
representative to the Governance Committee as referenced.

Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo.

YOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

Motion made by Selectman Wyman-Colombo to participate in the MDPH-Public Health Excellence
(PHE) Grant program administered by Barnstable County for public health shared services.
Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

Public Hearing — Annual Alcoholic Beverages & Entertainment Licenses:

Discussion and Approval of Annual Alcoholic Beverages & Entertainment Licenses:

Acting as the Local Licensing Authority of the Town of Mashpee, the Select Board opened the Public Hearing
on the 2024 Annual Alcoholic Beverages and Entertainment License renewals in the Town of Mashpee.
The Hearing notice was read into the record to adhere to posting requirements.

It was disclosed that all licensed establishments have passed building/fire inspections. All licensed
establishments have passed health inspections with the exception of Wicked and Estia which shall be contingent
upon approval from the Health Department.

Rory’s listed under Package Store Wine & Malt is temporarily closed for at least 30 days and is applying for a
transfer of license. The direct course of action is for renewal of the license, and then requesting approval of the
transfer from the Select Board and ABCC. It is the intention of the new applicants to not extend the closure
beyond the March 1, 2024.

The Police Department has confirmed there are no violations. The Treasurer/Tax Collector’s Office has
confirmed that all licensed establishments are current on their property taxes. All license holders have filed
their renewal applications and submitted proof of workers’ compensation insurance as well as proof of liquor
liability insurance as required.

Being no public comment, the Select Board motioned as follows;



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES 9

Mashpee Select Board
Minutes
December 4, 2023

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

Public Hearing — Annual Alcoholic Beverages & Entertainment Licenses:

Discussion and Approval of Annual Alcoholic Beverages & Entertainment Licenses: (continued)

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to close the Public Hearing.
Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo.
VOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to approve the 2024 Annual Alcoholic Beverages and
Entertainment License renewals for the Town of Mashpee with the exception of Wicked and Estia;
contingent upon approval from the Health Department.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

Public Hearing — New KENO License Application: Cape Cod Coffee. Inc. 10 Evergreen Circle, Mashpee. MA..:
Jan Aggerbeck: Discussion and Approval of KENO License Application: Cape Cod Coffee. Inc. 10 Everoreen
Circle, Mashpee. MA:

The Select Board opened the Public Hearing by reading aloud the advertisement on the application of Cape Cod
Coffee, Inc. d/b/a Cape Cod Coffee, 10 Evergreen Circle, Mashpee for a KENO license.

Jan Aggerbeck was in attendance to review the request for a KENO license with the Select Board.
Being no comment, the Board motioned as follows;
Motion made by Selectman Sherman to close the Public Hearing.

Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo.
VOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to approve the application of Cape Cod Coffee, Inc. d/b/a Cape Cod
Coffee, 10 Evergreen Circle, Mashpee for a KENO license.
Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo.
VOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.
Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES 10

Mashpee Select Board
Minutes
December 4, 2023

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

Public Comment;

Ken Dembrowski commented on data that was previously submitted regarding real estate taxes and the
assessment process.

Greg McKelvey expressed appreciation to the Town staff who are dedicated and experts in their field. The

Director of Public works was complimented for the work done at the Transfer Station. Favorable comments
were also directed to the honest and straight-forward integrity of the Town Manager.

NEW BUSINESS

Interviews. Discussion and Possible Approval of the Following Appointment:

Mashpee-Wakeby Lake Management Committee (Term Expires June 30. 2024 ): Allison Bernhardt:

The Select Board met with Allison Bernhardt to review her interest in joining the Mashpee-Wakeby Lake
Management Committee. Ms. Bernhardt indicated she is a full-time resident, residing on the lake in the
Mashpee Shores community. She attended the committee meeting last October and is interested in improving
the conditions on the lake. Her appointment is highly regarded by the MWLMC as a valuable addition.

Motion made by Selectman Wyman-Colombo to appoint Allison Bernhardt to the Mashpee-Wakey Lake
Management Committee.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none
LIAISON REPORTS

Intermunicipal Agreement:  The Intermunicipal Agreements for both Popponesset Bay and Waquoit Bay
Watersheds will be reported soon.

Holiday Parade: The Annual Holiday Parade is scheduled to be held on Saturday, December 9, 2023 at
5:30 p.m. in Mashpee Commons. The Select Board is invited to participate. The rain date is December 10,

Community Park: The Annual Tree Lighting at the Community Park was well-attended with a visit from Santa
to delight the children.




*DRAFT* SELECT BOARD DECEMBER 4, 2023 MINUTES 11

Mashpee Select Board

Minutes
December 4, 2023

TOWN MANAGER UPDATES

Snow Plow Contractors: Snow plow contractors are in dire need for the Town of Mashpee. The Town will do
its best with available resources. However, delays are anticipated if there is a major storm event.

Annual Organization Day: Town offices with the exception of public safety will be closed on Friday,
December 15, 2023 for the Annual Staff Organization Day.

Holiday Events:

Annual Homeless for the Holidays Event sponsored by the Mashpee Fire Department will be held on December
6, 2023 from 8:00 a.m. — 8:00 p.m. in the vicinity of the Mashpee Rotary.

The Mashpee Police Department is also on schedule with the Stuff a Bus, Toys for Tots event.

Budget Meetings: Respective Select Board liaisons are invited to attend the upcoming Budget Meetings on
December 11%, 12 and 14, 2023. Attendance should be coordinated with the Town Manager’s Office.

Beach Nourishment: Significant beach erosion occurred during the last November storm. It is projected that
1,000 tons of sand may be required for the restoration of the Town beach.

DEP: Correspondence was received from the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) dated November
30, 2023 relative to the extension of the date required for Best Available Nitrogen Reducing Technology in
septic systems serving new construction in designated Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Areas (NRN SA).
The date is extended to July 8, 2024.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to adjourn at 7:25 p.m.
Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo.

VYOTE: 5-0. Unanimous.

Roll Call Vote:

Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes
Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none
Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen M. Soares
Secretary to the Select Board



TOWN OF MASHPEE
SELECT BOARD
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE;

The Select Board, acting as the Local Licensing Authority for the Town of Mashpee, will conduct
a public hearing on Monday, December 18, 2023 at 6:40 p.m. in the Waquoit Meeting Room of
Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, MA 02649.

The purpose of said hearing is to consider modifications to the Weekday Entertainment License
(including Saturday) of Elevated Crust LLC dba Wicked Restaurant, 35F South Street, Mashpee,
MA 02649. The modifications would allow one amplifier for a one to three person band, live
music and recorded music outdoors until 12:00 a.m. through December 31, 2023. The public is
invited to attend, and to present any questions, comments, or concerns they may have pertaining

to this license.

You may submit comments and questions via email to bos@mashpeema.gov prior to the
meeting date and time.

Per order of
The Mashpee Select Board

John J. Cotton, Chair
Thomas F. O’Hara, Vice Chair
Carol A. Sherman, Clerk
David W. Weeden

Michaela Wyman-Colombo




TOwN oF MASHPEE

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649

MEMORANDUM
Date: December 14, 2023

To: Rodney C. Collins, Town Manager and
Honorable Members of the Select Board

From: Terrie M. Cook, Administrative Assistant

Re: Request for modifications to the Weekday Entertainment License (including Saturday) of Elevated
Crust LLC dba Wicked Restaurant (Allow Live Music from 12-19-2023 until 12-31-2023)

The Select Board, acting as the Local Licensing Authority for the Town of Mashpee, will conduct a public
hearing on Monday, December 18, 2023 at 6:40 p.m. in the Waquoit Meeting Room of Mashpee Town
Hall, 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, MA 02649.

The purpose of said hearing is to consider modifications to the Weekday Entertainment License
(including Saturday) of Elevated Crust LLC dba Wicked Restaurant, 35F South Street, Mashpee, MA
02649. The modifications would allow one amplifier for a one to three person band, live music and
recorded music outdoors until 12:00 a.m. through December 31, 2023. The public is invited to attend,
and to present any questions, comments, or concerns they may have pertaining to this license.

At the meeting of the Board on December 4, 2023, the Board approved the 2024 Entertainment license
for Elevated Crust LLC dba Wicked Restaurant, said license commences on January 1, 2024 and allows
for one amplifier for a one to three piece band, live music as well as TVs and recorded music. The current
entertainment license that expires on December 31, 2023 allows only TVs and recorded music.

The request is to modify the current license to allow live amplified music from December 19 through
December 31, 2023.



Daniel Kent

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Ma 02649
508-539-1400 x8538
dkent@mashpeema.gov

Town of Mashpee

Select Board

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Ma 02649

12/11723

National Marine Fisheries Service

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)
Department of Commerce

NOFO: NOAA-NMFS-HCPO-2023-2008173

Re:  APCC Proposal: NOAA Coastal Habitat Restoration and Resilience Grants for Tribes and
Underserved Communities, Under the BIL and IRA

Title: “Mashpee Wampanoag Tribal Restoration of the Mashpee River, Cape Cod,
Massachusetts.

To Mashpee Select Board:

On behalf of the Town of Mashpee, I am pleased to provide this letter expressing our full support
for the proposal submitted by the Association to Preserve Cape Cod (APCC) for NOAA’s
“Coastal Habitat Restoration and Resilience Grants for Tribes and Underserved Communities”
grant program. This project will meaningfully engage the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe, a
federally-recognized tribe, in restoration of fish passage and habitat along the Mashpee River,
one of Cape Cod’s most important diadromous fish runs for river herring, American eel, and sea-

run brook trout.

The Tribe will benefit from: capacity-building in restoration project management, planning, and
monitoring; opportunities to provide Tribal input to the project; and increased resilience to
climate change resulting from improved fish passage and a healthy river. Restoration will include
feasibility studies, permitting, and construction of measures to improve fish passage, stream
habitat and climate change resilience. A river monitoring system will provide data to the Tribe
and its partners to inform stream management and protection. Finally, as one of the Cape’s
largest and most accessible runs, the project will provide outreach opportunities and increase
public support for restoration.

This letter also serves as the Town’s authorization to have the Association to Preserve Cape Cod
(APCC) submit this proposal, receive grant funds if awarded, manage the project, and assist the
Tribe as described in the proposal. The Town will manage subcontractors hired under this grant.



The Town has supported other Tribal ecological restoration and protection efforts. ...

We strongly urge you to support this important project which will benefit the Tribe. Thank you
for your support. If you have any questions, please contact me at Town of Mashpee Conservation

Department.
Sincerely,
Daniel Kent

Town of Mashpee
Assistant Conservation Agent



Mashpee Select Board
Monday, December 18, 2023
Friends of Mashpee National Wildlife Refuge
Proposed Visitor Center Discussion

Proposed Visitor Center: Construction of a Visitor Center at 966 Falmouth Road to be managed
by the Friends of Mashpee National Wildlife Refuge. The Visitor Center would aid in promoting the
Mashpee National Wildlife Refuge system, promoting native plantings, and support the Friends of
Mashpee National Wildlife Refuge through donations and enhancing their native pollinator
initiative project.

Location: Property is located at 966 Falmouth Road in Mashpee, MA roughly % miile from the
Falmouth/Mashpee town line heading south in the direction of Falmouth.

Existing Conditions: The property is 2.43 acres that the town acquired in 1997 due to
nonpayment of property taxes by the owner at the time. The parcel consist of a paved parking lot
roughly 1/3 acre in size and the remainder is naturally vegetated with a healthy tree canopy
consisting of black/white oaks, pitch pines, and white pines with healthy understory vegetation. The
parking lot has an existing street pole with associated electrical hardware and security light at the
top. The center island of the parking lot has crab apple trees with a hemlock species underneath for
ground cover. A row of rhododendrons and lawn separate the parking lot from Cooper Street. The
east side of the parking lot is fenced as a petition between the condos and the parking lot. The west
side has 175’ of natural vegetation in between the parking lot and Falmouth Road (route 28). The
south side of the lot has 140’ of natural vegetation to the property line. Property lines are
demarcated with concrete bounds at the southwest and southeast lot corners.

Proposed Construction: This project will install all possible green building options that are
currently possible. Installation of a visitor center with Solar power, greenhouse, pavilion, and
alterations to the existing parking lot. The orange area is the tree buffer area. Maintaining this tree
buffer will not alter the current neighborhood view and continue to suppress the noise from Hwy 28.
The blue area shows a rough footprint of the area needed to be cleared, a total of 0.75 acres,
approximately less than 100 trees. This area allows placement of a modular cape style building for
a visitor center (in red), a small pavilion, kiosk, picnic tables, and greenhouse space (in green). The
greenhouse areq is roughly 20°x30' square to the south of the paved parking lot for full sun
exposure. This location would allow for less trees to be removed in the overall project while
providing sufficient sunlight to the greenhouse and to the solar units on the Visitor Center. The
yellow is the current footprint of the parking lot. Replacement of rotting railroad ties in the center
island with a stone wall. Removal of select landscape plantings in the center island and the garden
bed along Cooper Street to be replanted with native plantings. A sign for this new MNWR Visitor
Center will be placed within the parking lot area




B tapsnd \
# BREATIEE L AR (T5ATRTS)
¥ Ewerze Sin

" TRES BUFFSR

MASHPEE NWR VISITOR CENTER

Wt s vt

?mogk Earth

This map shows the new development site as well as potential connections to partner lands and
great habitat management without crossing the highway. Currently, there are more proposed trail
connections and entrance points being planned with this Visitor Center in mind.

\\, . "::\'“ -t Legend

MASHPEE NWR VISITOR CENTER ) o — 5 SN 3 ]

Foriz 2 dRICREICN f2F T T0D i ;, ] — T 3 . ' AREATOBE SLEARED | Y5 ALRES
i = el f x 4 P Entrance Sign

g 1 o TREE BUFFER

Minimum area to be cleared of trees and understory in necessary for the following reasons

e prevention of damage to buildings from falling trees and branches

e dllow adequate sunlight from the South and Southwest for the greenhouse,
propagation areas and potential Solar arrays

o allow for future additions such as an outdoor education pavilion

¢ Potential uses for removed trees repurposed as course woody debris in river
and wetland restoration projects throughout the refuge and surrounding area as well
as used on site for landscaping timbers, wood chips, seating
and educational purposes.

e where applicable, pollinator habitat will be created to offset loss of trees



€¢0T 8T 49qwada(Q

pieog 133|9S aadyse|Al 01
UOoI1e1UDSAId 191U J01ISIA
93n}ay 3}I|P|IM |euonneN 3adyse|Al

AN

2]

abnyay ajpjipn [euonep sadysey ¢#
fospuonifs N

Ans \k,..y‘

i



‘suoiletado sy uoy aseq awoy

e Suissiw 2.8 am pue a3nyay ay3 4oy AIIgISIA d1lqnd sJapuly siyl
'93NJ9Y 3Y1 Y1m 23ua4adxa 413y] 92ueyUS JO 1noge uJes| 0}
J1|gnd 3y3 Joj de|d [BJIUII JO JIIUD JOYISIA ON Sey 98n)ay 9yl

FLITOUMLS T
e gl By

R R
KB YIS Y
FRESIE 8 VI T SR
VRO Y N

Avg LIOAOVM

(159498 0009 Aj4€3U) PO 8de) UO pue| UOIIEAIaSUOD 3]qISSSIIE
‘U3do 1s93Je| PUOI3S BY3 SI ‘SEET Ul PAIRAID “YMN 99dyse| 9y e

MIINIBNQ YN 99dysel




(219 ‘s9jes jue|d ‘2.403s aunjeu) siaulied 98nyay
J0} 1oddns azjwixew o1 ssiyunpoddo Suisiespuny mojy

Spue| 28njay 03 SUOIIIBUUOI |iel]

uoileanpa pue yaeaino 4oy Alloeded asealoul of
JuUdWdAjoAul YInoA Ja1eals Suipnjoul ‘yuawadesua Jnjgng
siauped YMNIA Suowe uonesoqe]jod usyisuais

33adyselAl ul asuaiiadxa J0lisIn deds-uado
93 9Jueyua 0] 30uasaud $321AI9S JOLSIA 38nJaYy Jusauew.ad v

S|eoo pue spasN Ad)




1a13eieyd pue 3jAis po) ade) 01 aiaypy
(sweidoud adnyoy 1oddns 03 321n0s anuanal
SE asipueydJiaw Jay31o pue s1i1ys-1 ‘s)ooq Jo 3|es) 9103s ainjep

Spuall4 ay3 Joj suonesado Jo 133Ul pue adelols ‘@aeds 3O

}loddns uap.ed Jojeul|jod
pue uopededoud jue|d Joj sease SuiSels pue asnoyuaaun

Ae|dsip d11gnd 1oy suapJies iojeuljjod
9deds 3unoaw pue wWoo4sse|d Joopu|
(S1n02S ““9°1) syuana dnoud Jay3o Joy uoljined soopinQ

pajjels/uado
JOU S1 131U32 ay] usaym s)sonj/sHqIyxa J00pPIN0 puNOoI-I1eaA

$9JN1E34 J91UdD) JOLISIA




'1d9Q $924Nn0S3Y |eJnieN pJeno |euoileN VIA ‘DJdV ‘se9isnJ|
:SUOl1ezIUe510 UOIIBAIASUO) 1310 YHM UOIleioge||od IBPIM\ o

‘sanljediunw pue

Ssuollez|ueslo Jay3o pue ‘sassaulsng ‘siaumoawoy :angnd ayy
10} 3|dwexa [ensia e apiroad 01 sSuijue|d SAIIBU MBU YSI[OeIST e

'SIOPLII0D pue syeliqey 341p|IM 31031sa4 pue ‘Daueyua ‘199104d 03

S9l4epunoq |ednjod ssosoe Juswadeuew |edj8ojoda/adedspue;
ul siauyied YMNIAI 3Y1 JO UOIIRIOGR][02 SUOLIS 3] 920JUIDY
"UOIjeUNISOP WiSLINO] e se 93n)ay aadyse|n 3yl 910Wodd

« 94NJBU YUM pue J1ayjoue-auo yyim Auow.ey uj anj|,

0} UOISIA s, 29dyselA Y}IM JU31SISUOI ‘Spue| UOIIBAI9SUOD PaJeys
9S3Y31 Jo juswAofua Joj s|iesy paysi|ge1sa 01 ssadde dljgqng

Allunwwo) / aadysejn 01 suauag




Loy c_m.n_nx..u

O T E T N

UALNTD HOLISIA HMN I3dHSYIN

R L
UG S F
52077 P HUZEVET S 35 0uENY " *OFY B 0 SETHD € B

pusoa 5 A P | . . HALNID HOLISIA HMN 33dHSVIW

PEOY Yinowje4 996




VdD duipnjoul ‘suonindo Suipunj aJo|dx3 .
J98euel\ UMOL yum sjie1ap usisap/Sulpjing ssnasig .
¢RYI0
J9JSUBI] 1SDU1UI 93]
ISUIIT
(sieaA Qz) aseaq .
:suondo ajennosau o) JaSeuelp umoy pue spudliy azioyiny .

pJeog 109195 Ag 3dasu0d jo Juswasiopuy .

sda1S 1XoN




‘3uipjing pue udisap aus ‘Suideaspue) ‘Bujuued
Uo 91e10qe||0d 03 siaulied YAMNIA YHM YJom 01 anuijuor)

‘SulwwelSoud
49Y30 pue |euoileanps ul spasu ainin} Joj sjuelsd ansing

's108foud pue ‘swesSoud
‘SWOO0J 3Ul193W U0} SPI3U PUB JUBWIAJOAU] [elRUI0d JIaY] 10}
(1219 ‘@242WW0) Jo Jsquiey) ‘Aleloy ‘Uoill|eo) |BIUSWIUOIIAUY
9adyselA) AHunwiwiod ssauisng pue Jyosduou Y3 y1m 199N

'Spasu 3|qissod J1ay] pueisiapun 01 suolleziuesio
UYinoA Jayio pue sdooul 1n03S |BIO| Y1IM 31B21ILUNWWOYD)
‘S|ied3 0} SUOI123UU0I

pue ugisap uo indul 412y} Joj saoqysiau 01 N0 Yoeay

dn-mo||o4 1310

= pu a1 \M/




To: Mashpee Select Board

From: Mashpee Historical Commission
Subject: Mashpee Ancient Burial Grounds
Date: November 29, 2023

The Mashpee Historical Commission (MHC), with the approval of Mashpee Town Meeting, is in the
final stages of rehabilitation of the cemetery in the “Lakewood” housing area. After this successful
reclamation, the MHC will be looking at rehabilitating three other Ancient Burial Grounds. It has
come to our attention that these Ancient Burial Grounds do not have official identifying names. This
leads to confusion about identifying these burial grounds.

The Mashpee Historical Commission requests that the Mashpee Select Board approve the following
official names for four Mashpee Ancient Burial Grounds.

1) The ancient cemetery located in the Lakewood neighborhood to be officially named: the
BOURNE ANCIENT BURIAL GROUND. Historically, the Bourne family lived in the area and Na-
thaniel Bourne is buried there.

2). The ancient cemetery located on Route 130 near the former motor lodge has locally be known
as the Avant Cemetery be officially named: the AMOS-COOMBS-AVANT ANCIENT BURIAL
GROUND. This would reflect the majority of family named stones in this ancient cemetery.

3). On Meeting House Road there is a small ancient cemetery associated with the Pocknett
family. We request the name be officially: the POCKNETT ANCIENT BURIAL GROUND.

4)  On Route 130, past the Parsonage, on the right is an ancient cemetery referred locally as the
Attaquin Cemetery. We request the name be officially known as the ATTAQUIN ANCIENT

BURIAL GROUND.

The MHC will be working to reclaim and restore the three ancient burial grounds and provide ap-
propriate signage to identify them.

Thank you for your consideration.



Town of Mashpee

Fire & Rescue Department 20 Frank Hicks Drive
Mashpee, MA 02649
V 508.539.1457
F 508.539.1453

Date: December 06, 2023 i DET 06 2023
From: Fire Chief John F. Phelan Human Resources Department

To: Kim Landry, Human Resources Director

Re: New Hire Certified Process

Director Landry:

An entry-level Firefighter process was initiated and posted on the Town website and in
the newspaper on September 18, 2023. The Town Human Resources Department administered
the Oral Assessment Interview on October 25, 2023.

A four-person panel assessed the candidates: Human Resources Director Landry,
Assistant Town Manager Taylor, Deputy Fire Chief Peltier, and Captain Thayer. The same set
of interactive, scenario-based questions was asked of each candidate. After the interviews, the
panel further scored candidates and ranked them into four categories. These consisted of the list

below.

Highly Recommended
Recommended
Recommended with hesitation
Not recommended.

Do

The final ranking list was given to the Fire Chief, and the top candidates were selected and
participated in an Appointing Authority interview.

Candidate Blake Wilson was granted a final interview with the Fire Chief on November 2,
2023. Candidate Wilson was approved to move forward on November 3, 2023, and given a
conditional offer for hire. The conditional offer consists of the list below.

e Comprehensive background investigation
e Physical examination by the Town Appointed Physician
o Psychological assessment by the Town Appointed Psychologist

I affirm that all phases of the entry-level selection process have been completed. The entry-
level process was monitored and reviewed by the Department of Human Resources.

John F. Phelan, Fire Chief

Qe gz



TOWN OF MASHPEE POSITION APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT REQUEST
Effective: September 1, 2016

JOB TITLE: F\T«QQ{%\’\*@P Q()TM’W&LFC DEPARTMENT: e
emprovee: bldle (OT[SoN union/unim: IARE Latsd %19

STATUS:ReguIarFuII-time[\/fTemporaryFull-time{ ] Temporary Part-time | ]
Standard Part-time [ ] Non-Standard Part-time[ ] Seasonal[ ]

LABORGRADE: W[/ STEP; L RATEOFPAY: T3S.525T19 perHour
Per Week 1577! (()f L{‘ (C{‘ Per Year/Base

I attest that this position was posted and/or advertised through the following:
Existing Eligibility List[ ] Town Posting[v] Local Employment Opportunity [\/f
Regional/State/National Opportunity [ ] Other Posting[ ]

I also attest that all policies and procedures of the Town have been satisfied regarding this appointment,
including: application review [ written examination[ ] oral interview M/appointing authority interview L}~
physical agility exam[ ] medicalexamination{x/]’psychologicalexamination[w]/éomprehensive background
investigation, including a CORI check ] or other

I further attest that the search and initial screening for this position was based upon minimum requirements,
knowledge, skills, abilities, essential functions and responsibilities outlined in a job description approved by
the Town Manager. (Attach job description) | further attest that the employee’s driver’s license status, if
applicable to the position, was verified.

J/An"r\ /,ar‘ndn_// 12-13-23
HuﬁR‘esources D\ﬁ‘c‘tor Signatur Date

| request this appointment/promasion to be effective on: DZCQML}(J_ M J Q)@SL:S

Appointing Authority Signature Date

This position may be filled upon confirmation and/or certification of this selection process, if a full-time new
employee; or compliance with Town policies and procedures, if a promotion.

Town Manager Signature Date

Chairman of Board of Selectmen (or Designee) Signature Date
Review of Appointment and Certification of Selection Process

Copies To: White — Human Resources Canary —Town Clerk  Pink — Town Manager



TowNor MASHPEE

=
%$

2
‘ ‘5‘5 16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649

MEMORANDUM
Date: December 14, 2023

To: Rodney C. Collins, Town Manager and
Honorable Members of the Select Board

From: Terrie M. Cook, Administrative Assistant

Re: Board, Committee and Commission: Resignations

Description

Discussion and approval of the following resignations:

* Human Services Committee: Member at Large (Term Expires June 30, 2024) Sam MacDonald
* Sewer Commission: Member at Large (Term Expires June 30, 2026) Erin Copeland

Attached is communication from each of the members with regard to their respective resignations.



From: Sam MacDonald <SMacDonald@'
Sent: Friday, October 20, 2023 10:54 AM
To: Gail Wilson <gwilson@mashpeema.gov>

Subject: Resignation HUMA(\} SERVICES ComMmm TTEE

Attention!: : Links contained herein may not be what they appear to be.%.
Please verify the link before clicking! Ask IT if you're not sure.

Hi Gail, 2

With everything going on in my life right now I'm not gonna be able to continue on the
board. If you need me to submit something more formal or go down to the Town hall to
sign something that's fine as well. | wish you all the best.

Sincerely,
Sam

Sent from my iPhone
11/17/23, 1:39 PM * Sam MacDonald

Fw: Resignation
Gail Wilson <gwilson@mashpeema.gov>
Fri 11/17/2023 1:28 PM

To:Terrie Cook <tmcook@mashpeema.gov>

Hi Terrie,

I have reached out twice to ask him to send a formal letter, |
wondered if below would suffice, he was the Clerk on the Human
Services Committee

Thanks,

Gail

Gail Wilson, M.Ed, LMHC | Human Services Director
Mashpee Human Services

Town of Mashpee

16 Great Neck Road North

Mashpee, MA. 02649

Office: 508.539.1411| Fax: 508.477.0497



ERIN TERKELSEN COPELAND

Moshpee MA 02649

December 11, 2023

Board of Selectmen
16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, MA 02649

Dear Selectmen,

[regret to inform you that | must resign from the Sewer Commission.
Circumstances in my personal life have changed and I've taken a
“traditional” 9-5 job. Because of this, | am unable to attend the
commission’s midafternoon meetings. | reached out to the members of the
Sewer Commission, but they were unable to agree on an alternate time
that would allow for my continued participation.

I'm grateful for the opportunity to have served on the commission and
thank you for putting your frust in me. | wish you all the very best as you
move forward boldly!

Very truly yours,

Erin Terkelsen Copeland



Barnstable County
Regional Government of Cape Cod
3195 Main Street | Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630

November 29, 2023

Via email only: rccollins@mashpeema.gov

Select Board, Town of Mashpee

¢/o Rodney C. Collins, Town Manager
16 Great Neck Road North

Mashpee, MA 02649

RE: Barnstable County HOME Consortium Advisory Council
Dear Select Board:

| am writing to inform you that the term of the Town of Mashpee’s member representative on the
Barnstable County HOME Consortium Advisory Council, currently Gary Shuman, expires on January
31,2024. Mr. Shuman has expressed interest in continuing to represent Mashpee on the Advisory
Council for another three-year term. We very much appreciate Mr. Shuman’s volunteerism and
affordable housing experience and we are delighted that he has agreed to continue as a member
representative on this regional housing committee. Attached for your reference is an information
sheet on the Advisory Council’s function.

Based on the above, we respectfully request that the Town reappoint Gary Shuman as Mashpee’s
member representative to the Barnstable County HOME Consortium Advisory Council to another
three-year term to run from February 1, 2024 through January 31, 2027. As the appointment is a two-
step process with the Town consenting to the appointment and then the County Commissioners
approving the appointment, we would very much appreciate if the Town could re-appoint Mr. Shuman
at the next available opportunity. This will allow us the time needed to place the appointment on a
County Commissioner’s agenda and have Mr. Shuman officially sworn in without any lapse in
representation.

We thank the Town of Mashpee for its continued support of affordable housing in the region. If you
have any questions regarding this appointment or the regional HOME Program in general, please do
not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely

Renie Hamman, HOME Program Manager
508-375-6622
Renie.hamman@barnstablecounty.org

cc: Gary Shuman; Terrie Cook, Administrative Assistant; and Evan Lehrer, Town Planner via email only

Main Office: 508-375-6600 | www.barnstablecounty.org



Barnstable County

Regionai Government of Cape Cod
3195 Main Street | Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630

Department of Human Services

Barnstable County HOME Consortium Advisory Council

The HOME Consortium Advisory Council consists of seventeen members: one representative from each
town and two at-large members. Additionally, the Affordable Housing Specialist of the Cape Cod
Commission is an ex officio member. See current membership list attached.

The primary tasks of the Advisory Council include the following:

1. Determines the allocation of federal HOME Investments Partnership Program funds received by the
County (currently approximately $500,000 annually) and reviews and approves project applications
for funding for the development of affordable rental housing units located in Barnstable County.

Additionally, the Barnstable County HOME Consortium was awarded $1,556,508 under the
American Rescue Plan for a new HOME-ARP Program to provide housing and service needs
specifically designated for a qualifying population of homeless and at-risk of homelessness. These
funds will be administered through September 2030.

2. Establishes local HOME and HOME-ARP program policies as allowed by regulations.

3. Remains current on local, state, and federal housing issues and advocates for policies that will
promote the creation and preservation of affordable housing in the region.

4. Acts as a liaison with their respective towns and local housing partnerships/committees and
reports relevant regional, state, or federal housing policy information.

5. Participates in topical round-table discussions on regional affordable housing issues.
6. Participates in the implementation of the Barnstable County Shared Regional Housing Services
pilot program

The Advisory Council has a standard monthly meeting schedule held on the third Thursday at 9:00 a.m.
held virtually with all members and staff participating remotely, as allowed pursuant to Massachusetts
state law.

Visit the Barnstable County Human Services Department for more information on the Programs:

HOME Investments Partnership Program

HOME-ARP Investments Partnership Program

Shared Regional Housing Services Pilot Program

Main Office: 508-375-6600 | www.barnstablecounty.org



Barnstable County

Regional Governmeant of Cape Cod
3195 Main Street | Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630

Department of Human Services

Barnstable County

HOME Consortium Advisory Council Members

Barnstable
Laura Shufelt (1/31/25)
MHP Director of Community Assistance

Eastham
Rachel Butler (6/30/24)
Eastham Housing Coordinator

Provincetown
Michelle Jarusiewicz (1/31/24)
Provmcetown Commumty Housmg SpeCIallst

Bourne
David Quinn (6/30/24)

HAC, Director of Housing Dev. & Planning

Faimouth
Kim Fish (6/30/25)
Falmouth Housing Coordmator

Sandwich

Nanette Perkins (6/30/25)
sandwich Houslng Authority Member

Brewster

Jill Scalise (6/30/25)
Brewster Housmg Coordinator

Harwnch

Arthur Bodin
Harwich Housmg Authorlty Member

) Truro
~ Betty Gallo (1/31/24)
Vice-Chair Truro Affordable Housmg Authonty

Chatham
Gloria McPherson (8/25/25)
Chatham Housmg & Sustamablhty Director

Mashpee
Gary Shuman (1/31/24)
Mashpee Housmg Committee member

Wellfleet
________ Rlchard C|ott| (3/23/24)
Wellfleet Housmg Authorlty Member

Dennis
Maggie Spade -Aquilar (1/31/24)
Dennis Housmg Coordinator

Orleans
Marsha Allgeier (6/30/25)

Orleans Housing Coordinator

Yarmouth
Lorraine Doyle (12/31/25)
Yarmouth Commumty Housing Com. Member

At Large
Charleen Greenhalgh (1/31/24)

Harwich Town Planner (retlred)

At-Large
Beth Wade (1/31/26)

Habitat, Director of Land Acq. & Project Dev.

Ex OfflClO
Patty Daley

Cape Cod Commtss:on

The Barnstable County HOME Consortium Advisory Council consist of seventeen members:
one member representative from each of the fifteen towns, selected by their town and two at-
large members, selected by Barnstable County. Additionally, the Affordable Housing
Specialist of the Cape Cod Commission is an ex officio member. All members are appointed
to the Advisory Council by the Board of Regional Commissioners. The Barnstable County
HOME Consortium Advisory Council generally meets once a month on the third Thursday of

each month.

Main Office: 508-375-6600 | www.barnstablecounty.org




